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VITERRA POSTS THIRD OUARTER EARNINGS OF $121 MILLION

Viterra Inc.s Viterra third quarter sales and other operating revenues were $2.2

billion in line with last years quarter Total sales and other operating revenues for

the nine months ended July 31 2009 were $5.2 billion up $151.5 million from the

same period year ago

Viterra generated consolidated EBITDA see Section Non-GAAP Financial

Measures in Managements Discussion and Analysis for the quarter of $204.5

million compared to $272.6 million for the same quarter of 2008 For the nine

months ended July 31 2009 EBITDA was $283.5 million compared to $432.3

millionlast year

Grain shipments for the quarter and nine-month periods were strong with Viterra

outperforming the industry This performance is attributable to Vitenas ability to

handle larger than average crop due to its significant inland terminal capacity

higher market share of open market grains and the logistic and transportation

efficiencies built into its system Despite this improvement results for the quarter

and nine-months reflect normalized grain margins this year and the effect that

weakened fertilizer margins have had on overall margins in the Agri-products

segment Year-to-date results also include $28.1 million fertilizer inventory write-

down that was taken in the first quarter

Viterras third quarter net earnings were $120.7 million or $0.51 per share compared

to $166.7 millionor $0.71 per share recorded in the same three-month period of 2008

For the nine-month period ended July 31 2009 Viterra generated net earnings of

$114.0 million or $0.48 per share which compares to net earnings of $241.5 million

or $1.13 per share in the same period of 2008 Excluding pre-tax $28.1 million

fertilizer inventory write-down and pre-tax $9.1 million loss on disposal of assets

Viterra net earnings for the nine months ended July 31 2009 were $140.1 millionor

$0.59 per share

On May 19 2009 Viterra and ABB Grain Ltd ABB announced that they had

signed an Implementation Agreement under which Viterra would acquire all of the

issued and outstanding shares of ABB for mixture of cash and shares via Scheme

Of Arrangement The transaction was subject to shareholder and court approval On

September 2009 in Adelaide South Australia ABB held two shareholder meetings

to approve the transaction Viterra announced the result of the vote immediately



following the meetings Please refer to the September 2009 news release which

can be found on the Companys website at www.viterra.ca

President and Chief Executive Officer Mayo Schmidt said Viterra has successfully

navigated through the global financial crisis with strong earnings in the third
quarter

and first nine months The significant impact of fertilizer markets worldwide were

mitigated to an extent due to Viterras strong performance in its grain handling and

marketing operations In our new crop season weather has played role with

expectations of an average crop throughout the Prairies We will continue to focus on

driving earnings and share value The completion of our Australian transaction will

offer increased benefits of geographical diversity an opportunity to level annual

earnings and global logistics arbitrage

Operating Highlights

Viterras shipments for the quarter ended July 31 2009 were 4.7 million

tonnes up 26.3% or nearly million tonnes over the previous years third

quarter On year-to-date basis Viterras shipments reached 13.1 million

tonnes substantial increase over the 11.2 million toimes shipped in the

same period last year

Viterras port terminal receipts were up 92.5% to 3.1 milliontonnes driven by
near record volumes at the Companys Vancouver export facilities where

receipts reached 1.7 million tonnes for the quarter On year-to-date basis

Viterras port terminal receipts increased 37.0% to 7.7 milliontonnes

Gross margins per tonne were $25.28 for the third quarter of 2009 compared
to $34.47 per toime in the same quarter year ago Year-to-date gross

margins were $26.02 per tonne in line with management expectations for the

year Last year the Company generated $32.49 per tonne in the first nine

months

Third quarter consolidated sales and other operating revenues for the Agri

products segment were down from the prior year decreasing by $71.1 million

to $938.7 million For the nine months ended July 31 2009 total sales and

other operating revenues were $1.39 billion up $12.6 million relative to the

previous years period

Agri-products gross margins were $199.0 millionfor the third quarter of 2009
and $242.1 million for the nine months ended July 31 2009 compared to

$255.4 million and $347.8 million for the respective comparable periods of

the prior year Lower fertilizer margins during the quarter reflect negative

margin sales and very little in-season appreciation linked primarily to

phosphate fertilizer These factors combined with lower margins on crop

protection products were the primary contributors to the results for the

quarter



On year-to-date basis Agri-products gross margins included $28.1 million

fertilizer inventory write-down that was taken at January 31 2009 Also

included is an $8.4 million realized loss and $4.1 million marked-to-market

unrealized loss on the Companys natural gas hedging program

Food Processing sales and other operating revenues for the quarter were

$56.7 million up $7.8 million from the comparable period of 2008 The

majority of the increase reflects sales contributions from the Companys new
canola crushing facility that was purchased during the quarter These

contributions together with increased malt sales more than offset an 8.1%

decrease in oat product sales that occurred due to temporary decline in

domestic and export demand For the nine months ended July 31 2009 sales

and other operating revenues in this segment increased by $15.9 million to

$160.0 million compared to $144.1 million last year

Feed sales and other operating revenues of $145.2 million for the three

months ended July 31 2009 were $32.9 million lower than last year due to

ongoing challenges in the United States dairy and the Canadian swine

markets On year-to-date basis feed sales and other operating revenues

increased by $91.4 millionto $512.5 million

Financial Highlights

For the three months ended July 31 2009 Viterra generated cash flow

provided by operations refer to Section Non-GAAP Financial Measures of

$178.8 million $0.75 per share and $238.6 million $1.01 per share for the

nine-month period

Free cash flow which is measured by cash flow provided by operations less

capital expenditures and does not reflect changes in non-cash working capital

for the three months ended July 31 2009 was $161.0 million and on year-

to-date basis was $191.4 million

The Companys total long-term debt to capital ratio was 29.5% at July 31
2009 versus 20.8% at July 31 2008 in line with managements target of

30% to 40% total debt to capital target

Readers are encouraged to read the full Managements Discussion and Analysis for

full details on the Companys fmancial and operating results

Viterra will be hosting conference call for interested parties on September 11
at 1100 a.m Calgary time 100 p.m Toronto time to discuss its Third Quarter
Financial Report Details are available on Viterras website under Newsroom at

www.viterra.ca



Certain statements in this news release are forward-looking statements and reflect

Viterras expectations regarding future results of operations fmancial condition and

achievements All statements that address activities events or developments that

Viterra or its management expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future

including such things as growth of its business and operations competitive strengths

strategic initiatives planned capital expenditures plans and references to future

operations and results critical accounting estimates and expectations regarding future

capital resources and liquidity of the Company and such matters are forward-looking

statements Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks

uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results performance and

achievements of Viterra to be materially different from any future results

performance and achievements expressed or implied by those forward-looking

statements number of factors could cause actual results to differ materially from

expectations These factors and assumptions are further detailed in Viterras Third

Quarter Financial Report

Viterra Inc is Canadas leading agribusiness with extensive operations and

distribution capabilities across Western Canada and with operations in the United

States Japan Singapore and Geneva The Company is diversified into sales and

services of crop inputs and equipment grain handling and marketing feed products

food processing and fmancial products These operations are complemented by value-

added businesses and strategic alliances which allow Viterra to leverage its pivotal

position between Prairie farmers and destination customers The Companys
common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol VT

Media Inquiries

Peter Flengens

Investor Relations and Corporate Affairs

Viterra Inc

306 569-4810

Investor Inquin

Colleen Vancha
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR DISCLOSURE

Managements Discussion and Analysis MDA was prepared based on

information available to Viterra Inc referred to herein as Viterra or the

Company as of September 11 2009 Management prepared this report to help

readers interpret Viterras consolidated financial results for the three and nine-month

periods ended July 31 2009 and July 31 2008

To support the discussion this report includes information with respect to the agri

business industry the markets in which the Company operates and any trends that

could affect operating and financial performance into the future Please read this

report in conjunction with Viterras 2008 Annual Financial Review and its most

recent Annual Information Form which are available on Viterras website at

www.viterra.ca as well as on SEDARs website at www.sedar.com under Viterra

Inc

This MDA the unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets Statements of Earnings

Statements of Comprehensive Income Statements of Shareholders Equity
Statements of Cash Flows and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements have

been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles GAAP and are presented in Canadian dollars unless specifically stated

to the contrary

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Viterra is vertically integrated Canadian agri-business engaged in number of

distinct but inter-related businesses Founded in 1924 the Company serves western

Canadian farmers and markets commodities and food products around the world

Viterra is Canadas leading agri-business with extensive operations and distribution

capabilities across Western Canada as well as operations in the United States

U.S Japan Singapore and Geneva

On September 2009 ABB Grain Ltd ABB shareholders approved the purchase

of all of ABBs issued and outstanding shares by Viterra The transaction is subject

to closing conditions ABB is leading Australian agribusiness with multi-faceted

operation and international focus ABBs diversified operations stretch across the

entire supply chain The companys core business divisions include national supply

chain grain marketing malt and rural services ABB employs 1100 staff across its

divisions throughout Australia and its international operations

Viterra is major participant in the value-added agri-food supply chain Its core

businesses are diversified among five segments Grain Handling and Marketing

Agri-products Food Processing Feed Products and Financial Products

Geographically Viterras operations are located across Western Canada and

throughout the south central United States It has offices in Winnipeg Regina

Calgary Japan Singapore and Geneva Viterra participates in fertilizer manufacturing



through its 34% ownership in Canadian Fertilizers Limited CFL oat milling at

three oat manufacturing plants located in Alberta Saskatchewan and Manitoba malt

processing through its 42.4A interest in Prairie Malt Limited and canola processing

through its canola crush plant in St Agathe Manitoba Viterra is also involved in

other commodity-related businesses through strategic alliances and supply

agreements with domestic and international grain traders and food processing

companies The Company markets commodities directly to customers in more than 50

countries

Viterras shares trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange TSX under the symbol
tVT Vitenas Chess Depository Instruments CDTs which will be issued in

connection with the acquisition of ABB See section 6.3 and Note 16 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements are expected to begin trading on the Australian

Securities Exchange ASX under the symbol VTA on or around September 14
2009

SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
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Third quarter sales and other operating revenues of $2.2 billion were in line with last

year and led to total sales and other operating revenues for the nine months ended

July 31 2009 of $5.2 billion up $151.5 million from the same period year ago
Gross margins for the quarter were $351.3 million compared to $414.4 million for the

three months ended July 31 2008 For the nine-month period gross margins were

$686.9 million compared to $803.4 million in the same period last year Despite

significantly higher grain volumes this year gross margins declined relative to the

prior year due primarily to the impact of weakening fertilizer prices on the Agri

product segments margins $28.1 million fertilizer inventory write-down taken in

the first quarter and more normal grain margin levels this year

Viterra generated consolidated EBITDA see Section Non-GAAP Financial

Measures for the quarter of $204.5 million compared to $272.6 million for the same

quarter of 2008 For the nine months ended July 31 2009 EBITDA was $283.5

million compared to $432.3 million last year primarily reflecting lower Agri
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products EBITDA which included the inventory write-down described above as well

as more normalized margins in the Grain Handling and Marketing segment

Amortization for the three and nine-month periods ended July 31 2009 was similar to

last years amortization expenses Integration expenses in the third
quarter were $1.4

million bringing the year-to-date total to $5.0 million compared to $12.3 million at

this time last year

In anticipation of the acquisition of ABB the Company entered into various

derivative arrangements in order to limit exposure to change in the Australian dollar

AUDI versus the Canadian dollar for total of AUD $1.1 billion The

arrangements do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting under Canadian GAAP
and therefore the costs as well as the unrealized gains and losses on the derivatives

have been charged directly to income on the Acquisition Derivative line in the

Companys Consolidated Statements of Earnings The arrangements have been

structured to limit the negative impact on the purchase price of ABB should the AUD
appreciate versus the Canadian dollar

For the quarter ended July 31 2008 the Company recorded net recovery of $3.4

million on its pension settlement to reflect finalized settlement of dispute

surrounding the Saskatchewan Wheat PooIIGSU Pension Plan

Financing expenses were $15.6 million for the quarter which compares to $8.4

million in the third quarter last year On year-to-date basis financing expenses

were $37.0 million compared to $31.5 million last year The following table itemizes

adjustments to this expense category
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After adjustments fmancing expenses increased by $1.6 million for the quarter

reflecting higher long-term debt levels associated with the Companys July 2009

issuance of $300 million in 8.5% Senior Unsecured Notes On year-to-date basis

financing expenses decreased by $6.1 million due to lower short-term borrowings and

short-term interest rates

Viterras year-to-date results also include loss on disposal of assets of $9.1 million

primarily related to the closure of elevators that were acquired in the Agricore United

acquisition as noted in the second quarter

Viterra recorded total corporate tax provision of $46.6 million in the three-month

period ended July 31 2009 compared to provision of $72.6 million in the same

period of 2008 For the nine months ended July 31 2009 the Companys total tax



provision was $48.0 million The effective tax rate for the third quarter was 27.9%

compared to 0.3% for the same period last year The effective tax rate for the nine

months ended July 31 2009 was 29.6% compared to 23.8% for the same period last

year The Companys effective tax rate ordinarily differs from the estimated Canadian

statutory rate of 31% due to variety of factors including the change in future tax

rates applied to different tax assets and tax liabilities items deductible for accounting

but not for tax as well as the effect of foreign income tax rates differing from

Canadian income tax rates

Vitenas third quarter net earnings were $120.7 million or $0.51 per share down
from the $166.7 million or $0.71 per share recorded in the same three-month period

of 2008 For the nine-month period ended July 31 2009 Vitena generated net

earnings of $114.0 million or $0.48 per share which compares to net earnings of

$241.5 million or $1.13 per share in the same period of 2008 Excluding pre-tax

$28.1 million fertilizer inventory write-down and pre-tax $9.1 million loss on

disposal of assets Viterras net earnings for the nine months ended July 31 2009

were $140.1 million or $0.59 per share
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As restated

The Companys earnings follow the seasonal pattern of prairie grain production

Activity peaks in the spring as new crops are sown and in the fall as mature crops are

harvested The volume of grain shipments are relatively stable through the quarters

but can be influenced by destination customer demand the CWBs export program
and producers marketing decisions which in turn are driven by commodity price

expectations harvest pressures and cash flow requirements The level of grain

receipts each quarter also depends on these factors

Sales of Viterra agri-products peak in May through July corresponding with the

growing season supplemented by additional crop nutrient sales in the late fall should

weather permit Although relatively steady throughout the year sales in the Feed

Products segment tends to peak during the winter months as feed consumption

increases In the Food Processing segment earnings are more fluid with continuous

demand for products throughout each quarter Financial Products agency fees follow

the related pattern of sales in the underlying activity in the Agri-products and Feed

Products segments
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4.1.1 Industry Shipments

Shipments in any given fiscal year are reliant upon production levels and
carry-out

stocks from the prior year Grain flows can fluctuate depending on global demand

crop size prices of competing commodities as well as the factors noted in section

4.1

In the third quarter of 2009 total industry shipments for the six major grains were 9.1

million tonnes compared to 7.5 million tonnes last year an increase of 21.1% For the

nine months ended July 31 2009 industry shipments were up 16.8% from the

previous years period to 27.1 million tonnes reflecting last years large crop size

producers desire to market their crop and
strong export program

4.1.2 Viterra Shipments

Viterras shipments for the quarter ended July 31 2009 were 4.7 million tonnes up
26.3% or nearly million toimes over the previous years third quarter For the six

major grains Viterra quarterly shipments rose 30.5% surpassing overall industry

increases by 9.4 percentage points

SEGMENT RESULTS

4.1 GRAIN HANDLING AND MARKETING

In the Grain Handling and Marketing segment Viterra actively buys grain and

oilseeds from farm customers throughout the year Viterra tests the commodities for

quality and cleans dries and blends them in preparation for shipping Viterra earns

margin for these services Volumes quality and export demand are key drivers in this

business Viterra markets open market grains and oilseeds directly to destination

customers and buys and sells CWB grains as an Agent and Accredited Exporter of

the CWB

Sean Handling and MarkeOng OduaI Actual

Three Months Nine Months
as nheuorndn emapentpe00nrtager rrayhsu endedioly 31 ended3oly 31

2009 2008 2009 7018
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On year-to-date basis Viterras shipments reached 13.1 million tonnes substantial

increase over the 11.2 million tonnes shipped in the same period last year The

primary drivers of this improvement included

good availability of grains and oilseeds due to last years large crop

ample railcar supply due to slowdown in other sectors potash and other

commodities for example

strong execution of Viterras open market export program particularly

through the Port of Vancouver due to our International Grain presence in

Asia and

solid CWB export program

For the three-month period the split between CWB and open market grains was
51 %/49% compared to 56%/44% and for the nine months was 49%/S 1% compared to

47%/53% for the same period last year

Market share an important measure of the Companys performance in this segment
is based on primary elevator receipts of farmer deliveries into the inland elevator

system For this years nine-month period Viterras market share reached 45.2%
which compares favourably to the Companys solid performance last year of 43.5%
The increase can be attributed to Viterras ability to handle larger than average crop

due to its significant inland terminal capacity higher market share of open market

grains and the logistic and transportation efficiencies built into its system

At export position port terminal receipts for the industry were up 2.3 million tonnes

or 46.3% over last years third quarter Viterras port terminal receipts were up 92.5%

to 3.1 million toimes driven by near record volumes at the Companys Vancouver

export facilities where receipts reached 1.7 million tonnes for the quarter On year-

to-date basis industry receipts were up 30.9% while Viterras port terminal receipts

increased 37.0% to 7.7 million tonnes All of Viterras port terminals recorded

improvements Performance at the Companys Vancouver terminal however led the

way benefiting from strong canola and pea sales into the Asian Pacific region

robust CWB export program and good availability of railcars

Gross margins per tonne were $25.28 for the third quarter of 2009 compared to

$34.47 per tonne in the same quarter year ago Year-to-date gross margins were

$26.02 per tonne in line with management expectations for the year Last year the

Company generated $32.49 per tonne in the first nine months The change in margins

from 2008 mainly reflects

lower merchandising and blending opportunities and lower associated

commodity prices and

fewer opportunities to extract premiums from the market due to less

volatility

11



Earnings associated with the Companys interest in Prince Rupert Grain were $4.8

million for the third quarter of 2009 or $1.04 per tonne and $11.5 millionyear-to-

date or $0.88 per tonne This compares to $7.0 million or $1.90 per tonne and

$11.4 million or $1.02 per tonne for the same respective three and nine-month

periods last year Increased volumes at the Prince Rupert terminal during the quarter

were mainly due to timing and annual volumes are expected to be similar to last year

Operating general and administration OGA expenses for the Grain Handling

and Marketing segment of $49.0 millionwere up $0.5 million for the quarter On

year-to-date basis OGA expenses totaled $146.3 million for this segment up $10.6

million This is primarily result of increased variable costs due to higher grain

volumes this year and additional wages salaries and benefits The increase also

reflects the addition of the International Grain division that was established in the

latter part of 2008

Segment EBITDA for the quarter was $68.8 million compared to the $78.6 million

generated in the same period last year For the nine months ended July 31 2009
EBITDA was $193.7 million compared to $229.2 million for the same nine-month

period of 2008

4.2 AGRI-PRODUCTS

Viterra currently operates 254 ag-retail facilities located across Western Canada and

holds 34% investment in CFL nitrogen fertilizer manufacturing plant in Medicine

Hat Alberta The Company is entitled to receive 34% of approximately 1.5 million

tonnes of merchantable product split equally between granular urea and anhydrous

ammonia NH3
Retail sales of agri-products are seasonal and correlate directly to the life cycle of the

crop During the first two quarters of the Companys fiscal year November to April
Viterra focuses on providing its customer base with planning agronomic and

customized solutions in preparation for the next years crop Viterra also works with

suppliers to position product and inventories in advance of the intense spring selling

period Between mid-April and the end of June the Company typically generates

more than 75% of this segments annual sales and earnings when producers purchase

their crop inputs seed fertilizer and crop protection products The level of sales in

the fall is dependent upon the timing of harvest and the arrival of winter weather
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Third quarter consolidated sales and other operating revenues for the Agri-products

segment were down from the prior year decreasing by $71.1 million to $938.7

million For the nine months ended July 31 2009 total sales and other operating

revenues were $1.39 billion up only $12.6 million relative to the previous years

period

Fertilizer sales were $479.1 million for the quarter decline of $42.5 million

reflecting lower usage rates and unfavourable spring weather conditions On
year-

to-date basis fertilizer sales of $793.5 million were slightly ahead of last years

period mainly due to higher prices that were somewhat offset by lower volumes

Consolidated Fertilizer Volumes by Quarter

For the quarters ended

in 000 tonnes

Fiscal Year January 31 April30 July 31 Total

2009 269 247 757 1273

2008 319 201 772 129

Seed sales during the third quarter were $101.5 million decrease of $11.0 million

over the $112.5 million reported in the three months ended July 31 2008 Higher than

expected sales in the second
quarter more than offset this decrease as farmers

purchased larger portion of their seed requirements earlier this year

On year-to-date basis seed sales were $10.4 millionhigher reaching $183.3 million

this year Higher selling prices for canola seed more than offset lower volumes and

prices for wheat and barley seed

Unfavourable growing conditions during the quarter had an impact on sales of the

Companys crop protection products Third quarter sales were $331.2 million

compared to $346.7 million in last years third quarter late cool spring reduced

demand for pre-seed products and drier than normal weather throughout certain parts

of the Prairies coupled with cooler temperatures in the early summer months reduced

product demand This quarters sales also reflect lower priced glyphosates relative to

last year On year-to-date basis crop protection product sales were $359.7 million

compared to $375.8 million last year

Strong demand for on-farm storage led to solid sales increases for Viterras

equipment during the quarter partly offset by declines in the equipment rentals and

other revenue category due to reduction of custom applications associated with

lower crop protection product sales On year-to-date basis equipment sales and

other revenue were solid increasing $8.7 million to $54.3 million compared to year

earlier

Gross margins were $199.0 million for the third
quarter of 2009 and $242.1 million

for the nine months ended July 31 2009 compared to $255.4 million and $347.8
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million for the respective comparable periods of the prior year Lower fertilizer

margins during the quarter reflect negative margin sales and very little in-season

appreciation linked primarily to phosphate fertilizer These factors combined with

lower margins on crop protection products were the primary contributors to the

results for the quarter

On year-to-date basis gross margins included $28.1 million fertilizer inventory

write-down that was taken at January 31 2009 Also included are an $8.4 million

realized loss and $4.1 million marked-to-market unrealized loss on the Companys
natural gas hedging program Excluding these adjustments gross margins for the

nine months ended July 31 2009 were down $65.1 million Lower fertilizer margins

are the primary reason for the variance

OGA expenses were in line with last years quarter at $53.0 million For the nine-

month period OGA expenses increased by $9.0 million to $124.0 million primarily

reflecting incremental expenses for wages and salaries

EBITDA for the quarter was $145.9 million compared to $202.4 millionlast year and

for the nine months ended July 312009 was $118.1 million compared to $232.8

million

4.3 FOOD PROCESSING

Viterras Food Processing segment includes its oat milling division with plants in

Portage la Prairie Manitoba Martensville Saskatchewan and Barrhead Alberta

canola crushing facility at St Agathe Manitoba that Viterra began operating on June

25 2009 and 42.4% interest in Prairie Malt Limited single-site malting plant

located at Biggar Saskatchewan

The Companys oat milling business is an established market leader in industrial oat

supply and the supplier of choice for many North American food manufacturers For

the oat milling business yield is significant factor in profitability The quality of

raw oats has the largest impact on yield Oats are priced in U.S dollars and the world

feed grain market predominantly drives prices As result foreign exchange rates can

affect margins and Viterra employs currency hedging practices to protect margins
The price of finished goods moves up and down with the price of oats

Viterras canola crushing business has canola crush capacity of 1000 metric tonnes

per day and with immediate access to North Americas major rail lines is well-

situated to source raw materials domestically and supply North American end-use

markets Canola oil is low in trans fats and saturated fats and has one of the healthiest

fat profiles of any of the major vegetable oils

In Viterras malt business reliable quality is key factor in maintaining sales

relationships with international customers Only high-quality malt barley is selected

for the malting process so crop quality can affect supply and increase production

costs For Prairie Malt energy consumption labour and yield maximization the
amount of malt produced from tonne of barley are key production drivers Natural
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Sales and other operating revenues in the Food Processing segment for the quarter

were $56.7 million up $7.8 million from the comparable period of 2008 The

majority of the increase reflects sales contributions from the Companys new canola

crushing facility that was purchased during the quarter These contributions together

with increased malt sales more than offset an 8.1% decrease in oat product sales that

occurred due to temporary decline in domestic and export demand Export sales of

oat products into Latin America were down for the quarter while domestic customers

reduced their fmished goods inventory and adjusted their marketing programs to

target more value-orientated products

For the nine months ended July 31 2009 sales and other operating revenues in this

segment increased by $15.9 millionto $160.0 millioncompared to $144.1 million last

year The increase primarily reflects contributions from the new canola crushing

operations and stronger malt sales for the period

Gross margins in the third
quarter of 2009 improved by $2.7 million to $12.8 million

compared to the same three-month period of 2008 Marked-to-market adjustments for

commodity prices during the
quarter resulted in $1.4 million gain in the oat milling

operations gross margin during the quarter which compares to $0.3 million gain

recorded in the same three-month period of 2008 Excluding this adjustment the

segments gross margin improvement reflects better manufacturing yields in Viterras

oat business along with strong shipments at Prairie Malt

On year-to-date basis gross margins in this segment were $23.8 million compared
to $27.5 million during the same period last year Total marked-to-market

adjustments and realized gains were $2.3 million including approximately $0.5

million in foreign exchange marked-to-market gains from the canola operation

compared to $2.6 millionloss for the same period of 2008

159959 144125

236 250

100.06 110.12

gas is also key factor in production thus gas prices can affect margins Since sales

are priced in U.S dollars Prairie Malt reduces the impact of foreign currency

fluctuations by engaging in currency hedging activities
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While the lower operating margins reflect reduced oat volumes and fewer sales of

flake products during the quarter margins earned on oat products sold still reflect

$3 per tonne increase after the marked-to-market effect is removed

OGA expenses for the quarter were $3.3 million compared to $1.7 million and were

$6.8 million compared to $5.6 million on year-to-date basis The increase was

primarily the result of additional costs associated with the new canola crushing

operation offset slightly by lower year-to-date costs at the milling and malting

operations

Segment EBITDA was $9.5 million for the third quarter up from $8.4 million from

the same period last year primarily reflecting the marked-to-market adjustment noted

above On year-to-date basis EBITDA was $17.0 million compared to $21.9

million year ago Positive marked-to-market adjustments only partially offset the

impact of the foreign exchange loss recorded by Prairie Malt earlier in the year

4.4 FEED PRODUCTS

The Feed Products segment formulates and manufactures feed and feed ingredients

for swine dairy and beef cattle poultry and other specialty feeds from six feed mills

and two pre-mix facilities across Western Canada and at six feed mill locations in

Texas New Mexico and Oklahoma in the U.S The key driver in the profitability of

feed manufacturing is volume since feed sales prices typically fluctuate in response

to the underlying cost of ingredients Margins remain relatively consistent year-over-

year with average annualized margins of about $41 to $45 per tonne However there

can be some seasonal variability in the U.S market in the spring when the product

mix shifts to lower margin products aimed at commercial feedlots

Food Peodacte Actoal
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Non-feed sa4 and Other operating reverores 1024 5652
Feed mrrpn the endtonne ovoid 3822 42.42

Non-feed gross poSt ard flee revenaje from Oervrvev 266 4327

AotoaI

Nine Months

ended JaIfi 31
2005 2008

60041 54th8

55.613 53.154

14028 1.834

6.057 7435

5031 5601

1540 1.386

612515 421148

7354 23348
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Feed sales and other operating revenues of $145.2 million for the three months ended

July 31 2009 were $32.9 million lower than last year due to lower prices and ongoing

Year-to-Date Adjusted Gross Margins Actual

Nine Months

in $millions ended July 31
2009 2008

Gross profit and net revenues from services 23.8 27.5

Prairie Malt foreiqn exchanqe loss Qi 2.5
Marked-to-market adiustmen and reahzed ciainsilosses 2.3 2.6
Gross profit and net revenues from services adjusted 23.6 24.9

25
49
c3
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challenges in the United States dairy and the Canadian swine markets On year-to-

date basis feed sales and other operating revenues increased by $91.4 million to

$512.5 million The improvement is reflective of the Companys acquisitions of

Sunrise Feeds LLC V-S Feed and Agri-Supplies Ltd Gore Bros Inc and Gores

Trucking Inc These transactions were completed during the second quarter of 2008
Results also reflect the impact of weaker Canadian dollar relative to 2008

Feed gross margins were $17.8 million for the quarter approximately $4.1 million

lower than last year due to lower sales volumes relating to the ongoing challenges in

the feed markets On year-to-date basis feed
gross margins increased by $7.2

million to $68.9 million The higher gross margins were the result of contributions

from the acquisitions described above and higher level of U.S sales combined with

the impact of weaker Canadian dollar relative to 2008

For non-feed gross margins last years results reflect losses attributable to the

Companys equity share in hog production company along with losses associated

with the downturn in the hog markets The investment was written off last year

entirely and the Company exited the hog production business in fiscal 2008

OGA expenses for the quarter were $17.9 million in line with the third quarter of

2008 For the nine-month period ended July 31 2009 OGA expenses were $55.6

million $2.5 million higher than the comparable period of 2008 Last years third

quarter and year-to-date results included $6.5 million of expenses related to the

Companys exit from the hog business After excluding these items OGA expenses

for the nine months ended July 31 2009 increased by $9.0 million The increase

reflects the addition of costs associated with the acquisitions described above

EBJTDA for the quarter was $0.2 million compared to an EBITDA loss of $0.4

million for the comparable period of the prior year On year-to-date basis EBITDA
increased $12.2 million to $14.0 million Last years results included costs related to

the Companys exit from the hog business

4.5 FINANCIAL PRODUCTS

Through both Viterra FinancialTM and Unifeed Financial the Company acts as an

agent of Canadian Schedule chartered bank Viterra Financial extends trade credit

at competitive rates to the Companys Agri-products customers Unifeed Financial

offers secured loans to customers to primarily purchase feeder cattle and small

number of feeder hogs as well as related feed inputs with terms that do not require

payment until the livestock is sold The Company directly manages the customer

relationship and receives fee for performing front-end credit reviews and

management services In addition to these credit programs this segment also offers

other ancillary fmancial and risk management products to producers as well as

carbon credit program in Alberta in which Viterra purchases and aggregates carbon

offset credits from producers Viterra has long-term agreement to supply these

carbon offset credits to an energy corporation
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The profitability of this segment relates to the level duration and quality of credit in

given period which in turn is influenced by crop input and feed prices farm income

levels and interest rates

Vnaooiol I9odoots Actoel AothsI

Three Months Nine Months

is S/moods oeptpo-tages endedely 31 endedJuly 31
2809 2008 2509 21119
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4913 3188

6409 4939
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6214 4624

12627 8127

Gross margin for the third quarter was $3.7 million compared to $4.1 million for the

same quarter in 2008 Year-to-date gross margin was $11.4 millioncompared to $8.1

million in 2008 Larger loan portfolio balances in the first quarter of 2009 compared
to the same quarter in 2008 resulted in an increase of $2.4 million in fee revenue

The carbon credit and risk management products accounted for the balance of the

year-to-date increase in
gross margin

OGA expenses of $2.2 million in the quarter were $1.1 millionhigher than the same

quarter in 2008 and $1.7 million higher on year-to-date basis relative to the same

period last year Last year the Company recorded $1.0 millionbad debt recovery

which is the primary reason for the variance against this years expenses Year-to-

date expenses are also up due to increased expenses incurred to support business

development initiatives

EBITDA was $1.6 million in the third quarter of 2009 compared to $3.0 million for

the same three-month period of 2008 EBITDA for the nine-months was $6.5 million

compared to $4.9 million last year

4.6 CORPORATE EXPENSES

Corporate expenses include the costs associated with Viterras information

technology fmance human resources legal investor relations and conmrnnication

services business planning and development activities as well as executive

management and Board governance expenses

Conporote E1qeeeen Actoel Actoel
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Corporate expenses of $21.5 million in 2009 2008 $19.4 million were higher in

this years third
quarter primarily due to $2.2 millionaccrual for restructuring costs

relating to the enhancement of information technology service delivery across the

Company

Gross profit and 00 reororact from oerroces 3700 4067
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On year-to-date basis higher corporate expenses of $65.8 million in 2009 2008
$5 8.4 million are the result of the restructuring accrual noted above higher external

consulting fees in support of growth initiatives and an increased director

compensation program offset partially by lower accrual for capital taxes

OUTLOOK

In addition to other sections of the Companys report this section contains forward-

looking information and actual outcomes may dffer materiallyfrom those expressed

or implied therein For more information please see Forward-Looking

Information on page 31 of this report

Exports of Canadas six major grains and oilseeds were 30.9 million tonnes for the

crop year ending July 31 2009 up 3.5 million tonnes from last year and the second

highest in the past 28 years Canadian grains and oilseeds exports are expected to

remain strong for the remainder of Viterras fiscal year On July 30 2009 the

Canadian Wheat Board estimated its export program for the 2008-09 crop year at 18.5

million tonnes the highest level since 1999-2000 and up over million tonnes from
last year

Harvest of the 2009 crop has begun with winter wheat fall rye lentils and some peas

being the first to come off It is too early in the harvest to accurately predict this

years crop quality or size In order to realize the full potential of the crop the Prairies

will require frost-free weather into mid-September along with wann rain-free

harvest period

Statistics Canada issued its August 21 2009 Field Crop Reporting Series which is

based on preliminary survey of Canadian field crop production conducted between

July 27 and August 2009 Their report estimates the 2009-10 western Canadian

crop production of the six major grains and oilseeds will be 45.8 million tonnes

approximately 21% below the near-record harvest of 2008-09 and just slightly below

the 10-year average of 47.3 million tonnes It should be noted that the survey does

not reflect the benefits of the late July early August rains In addition given the

timing of the survey and the early stage of crop development at that time there is

opportunity for material swings between the estimates and the final production

numbers

It is managements current belief that provided the Prairies receive the required

favorable weather over the next several weeks that there is potential for the crop to

exceed Statistics Canadas current forecast Viterra is estimating production of the

six major grains to be in the 46 to 48 million tonne range approximately 5% below

historical averages of 49 to 50 milliontonnes Statistics Canada will release an update

to their initial production estimate on October 2009
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On September 2009 Statistics Canada issued its estimates on Stocks of Canadian

Grain at July 31 2009 Western Canadian on-farm stocks of the six major grains

were 6.4 million tonnes approximately 25% higher than the 10-year average

Based on on-farm carry-over stocks and current production estimates deliveries into

the western Canadian grain handing system for 2009/10 are expected to be in the 31

to 32 million toimes in line with the historical average

For the Agri-products segment results for the remainder of the year particularly

fertilizer and crop protection products sales will be dependent upon suitable weather

conditions Given crops have been slow to mature this season cool or wet pre-harvest

weather could contribute to higher than normal herbicide usage to help crops mature

in timely fashion The timing and extent of post-harvest applications of both

fertilizer and crop protection products will be dependent upon good weather

conditions in October

In the Food Processing segment long-term demand for whole grain nutritional food

ingredients continues to remain strong and demand for oat ingredients is expected to

continue to grow However in the short-term increased competition in the granola

bar category has led to climb in inventory and reduction in nearby orders The

economy is creating more consumer demand for private label store brand ready-to-

eat cereals which is reflected in increased sales of Viterras whole oat flour Growth

of premium products such as organics may slow in the short-term due to current

economic conditions

Viterra expects demand for its canola oil to be strong and the Company is well

positioned to meet the growing demand for healthy canola oil ingredients Adequate
seed supplies are expected assuming good crop conditions moving into harvest

For the Feed Products business the decline in feed ingredient costs within the

livestock sector has been positive for Canadian livestock producers however the

current economic situation and stronger Canadian dollar has put pressure on both

cattle and hog exporters Hog production has been slow to recover and current

measures being put in place by the Canadian government are expected to impact herd

size and therefore demand in the short term

Wo chang
09110vs 08109

Summary of Western Canadas Six Major Crops _______________
Statistic Canadas August Production Estimate Actual Actual Estimated

OOOctonnes 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10

Winter Wheat 1284.5 1982.7 1073.7

Spring Wheat 3428.6 17995.3 15791.9

Durum Wheat 3681.4 5519.3 4519.2

All Wheat 18394.5 25497.3 21384.8

Oats 4287.6 3958.9 2600.8

Barley 10312.5 11209.3 8311.4

Canola 9482.2 12560.0 9477.8

Flax 633.5 861.1 915.0

Dry Peas 2934.8 3571.3 3113.0

Total 46045.3 57657.9 45802.8
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In the U.S the poor economic situation has led to reduced demand for meat and dairy

products resulting in lower feed demand for 2009 Given these fundamentals

management anticipates continued pressure on gross margins within its U.S

operations for the remainder of the fiscal year Despite these issues the additional

contributions from feed acquisitions are expected to improve results materially in this

segment relative to last year when the Company took the necessary steps to exit the

hog production business remaining only feed supplier to the industry

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

6.1 Cash Flow Information
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For the three months ended July 31 2009 Viterra generated cash flow provided by

operations of $178.8 million $0.75 per share decrease of $82.6 million from last

year The reduction in cash flow for the period resulted from lower EBITDA higher

cash financing expenses and higher current corporate taxes On year-to-date basis

cash flow provided by operations decreased by $144.5 million to $238.6 million

$1.01 per share for the nine months ended July 31 2009 Lower cash flow reflects

this years lower EBITDA contribution higher cash fmancing expenses after the

impact of $6.3 million interest recovery on the appeal of federal tax reassessment

in 2008 partly offset by lower integration expenses and current corporate taxes

Cash Flow Provided by lined in Opeentlog Activities

Three Months

in Prounarrdq endeduly 31

2009 2008

Net errings 120688 166712

Adju38eenfu for tens not irsnhansi 5511 58.119 94706

Cant flow provided by qrer0800s 178807 261418

Clran in poe-cash rsorldng capiOl tOPS 100395 4163
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Free cash flow is measured by cash flow provided by operations less capital

expenditures and does not reflect changes in non-cash working capital see Non
GAAP Financial Measures in Section For the three months ended July 31 2009
free cash flow was $161.0 million compared to $245.9 million for the comparable

period of the prior year On year-to-date basis Viterra generated free cash flow of
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$191.4 million decrease of $156.5 million from 2008 The variances for both

periods reflect lower cash flow provided by operations as explained above and higher

capital expenditures this year compared to last year

6.2 Non-cash Working Capital

Inventories at the end of July 31 2009 were $132.2 million lower than at July 31
2008 Grain inventories decreased by $189.2 million due to lower commodity prices

and lower quantities on hand offset by higher agri-products inventories reflecting

higher crop protection products due to lower spring sales

Accounts receivable at the end of July 31 2009 were $47.0 million higher than at

July 31 2008 This is result of higher accounts receivable levels in Grain Handling

and Marketing Agri-products and Food Processing

The $38.0 million increase in prepaid expenses and deposits largely reflects higher

prepayments to fertilizer suppliers for the upcoming fall season

6.3 Investing Activities

On May 19 2009 Viterra announced that it had signed an Implementation

Agreement under which Viterra proposed to acquire all the issued and outstanding

shares of ABB referred to herein as the ABB Transaction Please refer to

Viterras news release dated May 19 2009 which can be found on the Companys
website at www.vjterra.ca and refer to Note 16 in the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements accompanying this report The transaction is valued at $1.4

billion ADD $1.6 billion and is comprised of combination of cash and shares

Viterra has entered into derivatives to hedge the ADD cash portion of the transaction

The transaction was subject to satisfaction of number of customary closing

conditions including the approval of ABB shareholders and court approval as well as

the receipt of required regulatory approvals ABB shareholders voted in favour of the

proposed transaction on September 2009 in Adelaide South Australia Please refer

to Viterras news release dated September 2009 which can be found on the

Companys website at www.viterra.ca and refer to Note 16 in the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements accompanying this report Approval of two

resolutions was required The following table outlines the thresholds and the result of

the voting process

Non-cash Wofking Capital

As at july 31

in thousands

2009 2008

Inventcri 679167 811335
Accounts recvable 802197 755230
Prepaid expens and depo9ts 66241 28223
Accounts

payable and aca-ued liabiliti 666877 642585

880728 952203
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--
of Scheme of Arraent by number of voters

Approval of Scheme of Arrangement by share value

75% 82.8dConshubonal Amendment by share value

The Constitutional Amendment to remove 15% ownership cap which limited the

number of shares an individual shareholder of ABB can own was required to

facilitate the proposed transaction

On September 10 2009 the Federal Court of Australia also approved the proposed

transaction The Implementation Date for the approved transaction as per the Scheme

of Arrangement is September 23 2009 The transaction is still subject to certain

regulatory approvals which are expected to be received prior to the Implementation

Date

Vitena currently has AUD short-term investments which along with the proceeds of

the subscription receipt offering described below are expected to fully fund the cash

portion of the transaction

The following table summarizes the minimum and maximum amount of cash

assuming the exchange rate of AUD$0.8901 as announced on May 19 2009 and

additional shares required under the approved ABB Transaction

Potential

Potential Additional

millions Cash Portion Shares Issued1

Cash Minimum Share

Minimum Cash Maximum Shares 669.1

39.1

78.3

Potential additional shares issued does not include the 56.25 million shares that will be issued

for cash proceeds under the subscription receipt agreement described below

The cash component of the transaction will be based on the foreign exchange rate at

the Implementation Date of September 23 2009 The share component of the

transaction will be in the form of CHESS Depository Interests CDI to be listed on

the ASX The CDIs will represent an equal interest in Viterra shares and will be

exchangeable into TSX listed Viterra shares on one-for-one basis ABB
shareholders can also elect to have their share component issued as Viterra shares

listed on the TSX

At the close of trading on September 11 2009 ABB shares were suspended from

trading On September 14 2009 trading in Vitena CDIs will commence on the ASX
on deferred settlement basis September 18 2009 will be the deadline for receipt of

Scheme Consideration Election Forms as well as the Scheme Record Date for

determining entitlements to Scheme Consideration
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On May 13 2009 Viterra successfully completed the offering of $450 million in

equity net proceeds to Viterra of approximately $431.3 million through bought

deal subscription receipt offering by way of private placement to exempt
purchasers The proceeds of the offering were raised to provide portion of the

funding for the ABB Transaction The price of the issue was $8.00 per subscription

receipt and each subscription receipt represented the right of the holder to receive for

no additional consideration one common share of Viterra upon the successful closing

of the ABB Transaction The 56.25 million subscription receipts issued under the

offering will be exchanged into an equivalent number of common shares of Viterra

upon the initial take-up by Viterra of the ABB common shares on the Implementation

Date of September 23 2009

6.4 Financing Activities

The Companys total funded debt net of cash and short-term investments of $65.3
million at July 31 2009 improved by $249.3 million from the comparable period of

the prior year This improvement was due to decrease in short-term borrowings of

$106.2 million an increase of $531.3 million in cash and short-term investments

offset by an increase in long-term debt including the current portion of $382.5

million

Long-term debt including the current portion was $982.2 million at July 31 2009

up $382.5 million from the $599.7 million reported at the same time last year The

increase is attributable to $300 million in Senior Unsecured Notes bearing interest of

8.5% issued July 2009 due July 2014 and the remaining $100 milliondrawn in

December 2008 on the $400 million Term Credit Facility issued initially in May
2008 less minimum mandatory principal repayments made on the Term Credit

Facility 4% per annum The net proceeds of the debt offering will be used for

general corporate purposes including the funding of future acquisitions

Short-term borrowings decreased $106.2 million to $17.4 million as at

July 31 2009 compared to $123.6 millionreported in the prior year The lower short-

term borrowings over last year primarily reflect free cash flow provided by

operations At July 31 2009 the Company had no cash draws on the revolving credit

facility with $584 million in available credit

See Non-GAA.P Finac/ Measures Zi Seetim

Key Financial Information

As at July31
in thousands exceptpercentages ptr and

ratios

2009 2008

Funded Debt 999610 723266
Funded Debt Net of Cash and Cash Equivalents 65300 183985

EBITDA nine months ended July 31 283462 432346

Ratios

Current Ratio 3.71 2.79

Total
Debt-to-Capitsl JO l% 25.0%

Long-Term Debt-to-Capital 29.5% 20.8%

Hatter

Wotse

276344
249285

148884

092x

Ipt

8.ipt
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The increase in cash and short-term investments is primarily attributable to the $300

million in Senior Unsecured Notes issued July 2009 and the $100 milliondrawn in

December 2008 on the Term Credit Facility as well as positive free cash flow from

operations

The following table summarizes all material credit facilities of the Company not

including member loans certain subsidiaries and joint ventures as at July 31 2009

Senior Unsecured Notre 100000 8.00Vo Fixed April 2013 None

Senior Unsecured tbotre 300000 8.50% Fixed
July 07 2014 None

Senior Unsecured Notre 200000 8.50% Fixed August 01 2017 None

mm Craclit Facility CAN 315250 BA 200 BP May 15 2013 4% per annum

mm Craclit Facility U.S 72750 LIBOR 200 OP May 15 2013 4% per annum

Revolving Crtsdit Facility Prime or BA 90 BP August 10 2010 N/A

Rank pan passu with Term Credit Facility

1st charge on property plant and equipmen5 2nd charge on all other assets of the Company including certain subsidiaries

property plant and equipment and the subsioiaries capital stock

By entering into an interest rate swaps the effective rate has been hoed at 5.3% on Canadian rondo and 6.1% on U.S funds

Upon successhjl cornplebon of the ABB Transaction the Term Credit Facility rate of interest will increase by 200 BP

lot
charge on aS assets of the Company and certain subskliaries other than property plant and equiprnen9 2nd charge

on property plant and equipment Term extendable at option of borrower up to August 10 2012 Malamum credit limit

is the lower of $000 mllion orthe calculated borrowing base of the facility

Short-term debt is used at various times during the year to fmance operating

requirements which primarily consist of grain and agri-products inventory purchases

and financing of accounts receivable from the CWB and other trade accounts

Typically the revolving credit lines are used to purchase inventories in the months

prior to the agri-product spring selling season and reflect the significant seasonal

variations in that business segment The Companys leverage ratio will typically

decline to its lowest quarterly level at July 31 third quarter representing the

Companys core non-seasonal level of working capital The level of short-term debt

can also fluctuate as result of changes in underlying commodity prices and the

timing of grain purchases

Management believes that cash flow from operations and its access to undrawn credit

facilities will provide Viterra with sufficient financial resources to fund its worldng

capital requirements planned capital expenditure programs and debt servicing

requirements This belief is predicated upon the Companys expectations of future

commodity and crop input prices and the expected turnover of inventory and

accounts receivable components of working capital See Forward-Looking
Information on page 31 of this report
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6.5 Debt Ratings

The following table summarizes the Companys current credit ratings

Following the announcement of the ABB Transaction the debt rating agencies

confirmed their existing ratings on Viterra Standards Poors maintained its

positive trend DBRS changed its trend to Under Review with Developing

Implications and Moodys Investors Service adjusted its trend to On Review for

Possible Downgrade

6.6 Contractual Obligations

Subsraarialy all of rho ps-chase ebipadcoro repre eat ccrrrrectual corenrbrrerto toparcfrace commohltes ash producer fe resale

6.7 Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

6.7.1 Pension Plans

The Company including its subsidiaries and affiliates contributes to several defined

contribution plans including multi-employer plan The Companys total

contribution expense including the subsidiaries and proportionate share of joint

ventures defmed contribution plans for the respective three and nine-month periods

ended July 31 2009 was $3.2 millionand $8.8 million 2008 $2.2 million and $6.3

million respectively

With regard to the Companys defined benefit plans management currently estimates

quarterly payments of $3.8 million in 2009 2008 $1.5 million to fund solvency

deficiencies in accordance with actuarially determined amounts based on federal

pension regulations In addition the Company is required to provide letters of credit

of $16.9 million 2008 nil The increase in payments and the letter of credit

requirements are primarily the result of reduction in the fair value of plan assets

Funding requirements may increase or decrease depending upon future actuarial

valuations

Moodys Investors ervire

Conbotsool Obg06ion Prucsec68

P1ncip Baymeats Dooe by Peiod

Ls the After

____________________________________________________ TotS Year lto3Yeers 4to5 Years Years

Balance Sheet Obligadono

Bank Irrdthtedners 6847 6647
Short-term 6650

87418 17418
Accoor99 payable and aoorued labilUm 666877 666877

Lorrg-terrrrrlebt 958768 18016 134556 646067 200089
Oth errs-term obIiobrrs 125856 29326 34101 16610 45819

______________________________________________________________ 1815765 738484 168697 662677 245908

Othee Conthaatoa Obligatioeo

Operasrrg lemor 37359 10257 15830 7251 4021
Pcrrhaes oblftasorrs 666105 659608 4706 0324 377

____________________________________________________________________ 703464 669955 20538 8575 4398

Tobi CoBaactoaal Obigationo 2019230 0408439 189233 671252 30306
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6.7.2 Viterra Financial and Unifeed Financial

Viterra FinancialTM provides grain and oilseeds producers with unsecured working

capital fmancing through Canadian Schedule chartered bank to purchase the

Companys fertilizer crop protection products seed and equipment Outstanding

qualifiing credit was $568.2 million at July 31 2009 compared to $573.3 million at

July 31 2008 Approximately 95% of the current outstanding credit relates to its

highest credit rating categories The Company indenmifies the bank for 50% of future

losses under Viterra Financial to maximum limit of 5% of the aggregate qualified

portfolio balance The Companys aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time

with the size of the underlying portfolio As at July 31 2009 the Company has

adequately provided for actual and future expected losses

Unifeed Financial provides livestock producers with secured working capital

financing through Canadian Schedule chartered bank to purchase feeder cattle

feeder hogs and related feed inputs under terms that do not require payment until the

livestock are sold The customer base for Unifeed Financial tends to be smaller

with individually larger average credit balances than Viterra Financial Unifeed

Financial approved $90.0 million July 31 2008 $94.1 million in credit

applications of which customers had drawn $36.6 million at July 31 2009 July 31
2008 $30.3 million The Company has indemnified the bank for aggregate credit

losses of up to $7.8 million based on the first 20% to 33% of new credit issued on an

individual account as well as for credit losses shared on an equal basis of up to 5%
of the aggregate qualified portfolio balance The Companys aggregate indemnity will

vary at any given time with the credit rating of underlying accounts and the aggregate

credit outstanding As at July 31 2009 the Company has adequately provided for

actual and expected future losses

6.8 Outstanding Share Data

The market capitalization of the Companys 237 million issued and outstanding

shares at September 10 2009 was $2.3 billion or $9.61 per share The issued and

outstanding shares at September 10 2009 together with securities convertible into

common shares are summarized in the following table

Anal Sept 10 2009

Ll000dited

Issued and ouIstaeding Common Shares 237049.738

Securities conmrtibIe into Common Shares

Stock Op tons 70950

237120688

hi the event of the successful closing of the ABB Transaction prior to November 30 2009 an

additional 56.25 million common shares will be issued pursuant to the subscription receipt offering and

maximum of 78.3 million shares would be issued to A.BB shareholders pursuant to the ABB
Transaction See section 6.3 Investing Activities for further details
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OTHER MATFERS

7.1 Accounting Policy Changes

7.1.1 International Financial Reporting Standards

In Febmary 2008 the Accounting Standards Board VAcSBI announced that 2011 is

the changeover date for publicly accountable enterprises to replace Canadian GAAP
with International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS The date relates to interim

and annual financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after January 2011
which will be applicable for Viterras first quarter of fiscal 2012 The Company will

also be required to provide IFRS comparative information for the previous fiscal

period

The Company has undertaken project to assess the potential impacts of its transition

to IFRS detailed project plan was developed and working teams formed to ensure

compliance with the new standards Steering Committee of senior individuals from

Finance Treasury Legal Investor Relations and Information Technology has been

established to monitor progress and review and approve recommendations from the

working teams Quarterly IFRS updates are provided to the Audit Committee

The Company has committed the appropriate resources and training to ensure the

Company is compliant by the transition date Part of the work that will be completed

will include an assessment of the impact to accounting financial reporting

information technology systems as well as certain contractual arrangements The

project has been broken down into four key phases including Project Initiation and

Initial Assessment Detailed Assessment Design and Execution

The Company has completed both the Initial and Detailed Assessment phases of its

project plan Key segments of these phases included determining accounting policy

and disclosure changes that will be required upon transition to IFRS as well as the

exemptions relating to IFRS First-time Adoption of International Financial

Reporting Standards

Set out below is the significant difference between GAAP and IFRS that the

Company has currently identified The Company continues to monitor standards

development as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as

standards change or are issued there may be additional impacts on the Companys
assessment In addition the Company may identify additional differences or

experience changes in its business that may have an impact on the assessment

material item was identified for employee benefits based on differences between

GAAP and IFRS relating to the accounting for defmed benefit pension plans IFRS

has several technical differences from current GAAP accounting for defined benefit

pension plans As well there are several accounting policy choices that are available

under IFRS for pension accounting including choice that is similar to what the

Company currently employs under GAAP Compared to GAAP IFRS introduces
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differences in the calculation of the expected future benefit the liability for minimum

funding requirements the valuation allowance and the interaction thereof

All other identified differences are considered unlikely to have significant impact on

the Companys consolidated fmancial statements These differences include

Presentation and Disclosure

Business Combinations

Impairment

Provisions

Share-based Payments

Leases

Foreign Currency Translation

Income Taxes

The Company has moved to begin the Design phase Key segments of this phase will

include the design of implementation plans for all work streams affected by IFRS and

drafting financial statements and notes to comply with IFRS The Company will also

continue to assess the impact of the transition on infonnation technology and data

systems and on internal controls This phase also includes ongoing communication

and training

7.2 Critical Accounting Estimates

At July 31 2009 the Company had consolidated tax loss carry-forwards of $25.0

million July 31 2008 $62.9 million These loss cany-forwards are from inactive

subsidiaries of which the Company has less than 100% interest full valuation

allowance has been recorded in respect of these losses and as result no future tax

asset is recorded

N0N-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

EBITDA earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization gain loss
on disposal of assets integration expenses acquisition derivative and recovery of

pension settlement and EBIT earnings before interest taxes gain loss on disposal

of assets integration expenses acquisition derivative and recovery of pension

settlement are non-GAAP measures Those items excluded in the determination of

EBITDA and EBIT represent items that are non-cash in nature income taxes

financing charges or are otherwise not considered to be in the ordinary course of

business These measures are intended to provide further insight with respect to

Viterras fmancial results and to supplement its information on earnings losses as

determined in accordance with GAAP

EBITDA is used by management to assess the cash generated by operations and EBIT
is measure of earnings from operations prior to financing costs and taxes Both

measures also provide important management information concerning business

29



segment performance since the Company does not allocate financing charges income

taxes or other excluded items to these individual segments

Funded debt net of cash and cash equivalents is provided to assist investors and is

used by management in assessing the Companys liquidity position and to monitor

how much debt the Company has after taking into account its liquid assets such as

cash and cash equivalents Such measures should not be used in isolation of or as

substitute for current liabilities short-term debt or long-term debt as measure of

the Companys indebtedness

Cash flow provided by operations is the cash from or used in operating activities

excluding non-cash working capital changes Viterra uses cash flow provided by

operations and cash flow provided by operations per share as financial measure for

the evaluation of liquidity Management believes that excluding the seasonal swings

of non-cash working capital assists managements evaluation of long-term liquidity

Free cash flow is cash flow provided by operations prior to any changes in non-cash

working capital net of capital expenditures excluding business acquisitions Free

cash flow is used by management to assess liquidity and financial strength This

measurement is also useful as an indicator of the Companys ability to service its

debt meet other payment obligations and make strategic investments Readers

should be aware that free cash flow does not represent residual cash flow available for

discretionary expenditures

These non-GAAP measures should not be considered in isolation from or as

substitute for GAAP measures such as net earnings as an indicator of the

Companys profitability and operating performance or ii cash flow from or used in

operations as measure of the Companys ability to generate cash Such measures do

not have any standardized meanings prescribed by Canadian GAAP and are

therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other

corporations
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Reconciliations of each of these terms are provided in the table below

Non-GM Teeo Renornejtietiorw and Calculations

rr thuorrdn 90tpreutagrm aedreti99

2889 2908

GJtaT4rOr6807PjThf
Gross proth and 068 reororuro from oeMcro 685890 859399
Orating georeS aod wlroioistreloe wremor 403428 371053
EBITDA 283462 432346

Amooizatiorr 77190 76656
EBT

205072

Net rororgs 114047 241492
Aornrtiza500 77590 76606

Noo-rnsh Irrarrong expenros 3708 2952
Proorsim for recooery of pe000o sallmoent 3356
ErrpIoytborrts 3049 504

Equty low eorrrlr99 of Ogeitlcanly ioflueocio rror35enjes 77 6407
Future Brooree tax thooisiuo 36474 59780
500-esh qu60on de1uelve 7404
Low gain on dLs6 9122 1469
0156 items 1999 219

Cbflowpriortoworkngcapitalchangno 235505 353135

FrEon-tv olrmt urnS eouDrnrnrt erunendituro- 47173 35174

Free Cad Flow 191415 347961

Current amete
2630898 2173082

Current Jiabillen 709585 779927

Corrent Ratio CeerentAswtn/Cornnt LiabilIties 3.71 2.79

Shod-term bnrroorio99 tante 12 17418 123179
Long-to-rn debt due within one year Note 12 18016 12110

IA Lorry-tn-or debt Bate 12 964176 587569

Total debt
999610 723266

Cadr and short-term movetareents 1071757 546492
Bank irdntter3ness 6847 1211

Cash aod co-h 99oivaleots 1064910 539281

Funded Debt Net of Cash and Canh Equivalents 65390 183985

FDJ Total orfurty 2325093 2168538

Total capital 3324703 2808804

Total Debt-to-Capital 30.1% 25.09/u

Long-Tern Dtht-to-Capital 29.5% 20gn/0

FoRwARD-LooKING INFORMATION

Certain statements in this Managements Discussion and Analysis are forward-

looking statements and reflect Viterras expectations regarding future results of

operations financial condition and achievements All statements that address

activities events or developments that Viterra or its management expects or

anticipates will or may occur in the future including such things as growth of its

business and operations competitive strengths strategic initiatives planned capital

expenditures plans and references to future operations and results critical accounting

estimates and expectations regarding future capital resources and liquidity of the

Company and such matters are forward-looking statements In addition the words

believes intends anticipates expects estimates plans likely will
may could should would outlook forecast objective continue or
the negative thereof and words of similar import may indicate forward-looking

statements Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks

uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results performance and

achievements of Viterra to be materially different from any future results

performance and achievements expressed or -implied by those forward-looking

statements number of factors could cause actual results to differ materially from

expectations including but not limited to those factors discussed under the heading

Risk Factors in Viterras most recent Annual Information Form and in the

Companys 2008 Managements Discussion and Analysis under the heading Risks

and Risk Management adverse weather conditions political and economic risks

changes in domestic regulation commodity price and market risks employee
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relations and collective bargaining foreign exchange risk availability of credit and

credit costs dependence on key personnel environmental health and safety risks

property and liability risks food and agricultural products risks diseases and other

livestock industry risks credit risk and reliance on computerized business systems

The uncertainties and other factors include but are not limited to crop production

and crop quality in Western Canada world agricultural commodity prices and

markets producers decisions regarding total seeded acreage crop selection and

utilization levels of farm inputs such as fertilizer and pesticides changes in the grain

handling and agri-products competitive environments including pricing pressures

Canadian grain export levels changes in government policy and transportation

deregulation international trade matters global political and economic conditions

including grain subsidy actions and tariffs of the United States and the European

Union current global financial crises and changes in credit markets and competitive

developments in connection with Viterras grain handling agri-products agri-food

processing financial products and livestock feed and services businesses Many of

these risks uncertainties and other factors are beyond the control of the Company All

of the forward-looking statements made in this Managements Discussion and

Analysis and the documents incorporated herein by reference are qualified by these

cautionary statements and the other cautionary statements and factors contained

herein or in documents incorporated by reference herein and there can be no

assurance that the actual developments or results anticipated by the Company and its

management will be realized or even if substantially realized that they will have the

expected consequences for or effects on the Company

Although Viterra believes the assumptions inherent in forward-looking statements are

reasonable undue reliance should not be placed on these statements which only

apply as of the date of this Managements Discussion and Analysis In addition to

other assumptions identified in this Managements Discussion and Analysis

assumptions have been made regarding among other things

western Canadian crop production and quality in 2008 and subsequent crop

years

the volume and quality of grain held on farm by producer customers

movement and sales of grains by the Canadian Wheat Board

demand for and supply of open market grains

the ability to maintain existing customer contracts and relationships

agricultural commodity prices

general fmancial conditions for western Canadian agricultural producers

demand for seed grain fertilizer chemicals and other agri-products

market share of grain deliveries and agri-product sales that will be achieved

by Viterra

extent of customer defaults in connection with credit provided by Viterra its

subsidiaries or Canadian chartered bank in connection with agri-product

purchases

ability of the railways to ship grain to port facilities for export without labour

or other service disruptions
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demand for oat and malt barley products and the market share of sales of

these products that will be achieved by Viterras subsidiaries

the availability of feed ingredients for livestock and poultry

the impact of competition

environmental and reclamation costs

the ability to obtain and maintain existing financing on acceptable terms and

currency exchange and interest rates

The preceding list is not exhaustive of all possible factors All factors should be

considered carefully when making decisions with respect to Viterra and undue

reliance should not be placed on Viterras forward-looking information

Viterra disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking

statements whether as result of new information future developments or otherwise

except as otherwise required by applicable law

10 ANNUAL MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Managements Discussion and Analysis relating to the third quarter and nine

months ended July 31 2009 and 2008 respectively should be read in conjunction with

Viterras Managements Discussion and Analysis for its year ended October 31
2008 Additional information relating to Viterra including the most recent Annual

Information Form filed by the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com

and Viterra web site www.viterra.ca

Mayo Schmidt Rex McLennan
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

September 11 2009

Viterra Inc

2625 Victoria Avenue

Regina Saskatchewan S4T 7T9

http//www.viterra.ca
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands

4RR
AS AT July 31 2009 July 31 2008 October 31 2008

unaudited unaudited audited

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash 77502 49153 183536

Short-term investments 994255 491339 486129

Accounts receivable 802197 755230 773830

Inventories Note 679167 811335 837943

Prepaid expenses arid deposits 66241 28223 91183

Future income taxes 11536 37802 59202

2630898 2173082 2431823

Investments 7741 16282 7645

Property Plant and Equipment 1177014 1170539 1154859

Other Long-Term Assets 65963 50711 69238

Intangible Assets 26692 18426 22133

Goodwill 309392 299637 300121

Future Income Taxes 4164 1916 2673

4221864 3730593 3988492

UABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUrTY

Current Liabilities

Bank indebtedness 6847 1211 655

Short-term borrowings Note 17418 123579 17769

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 666877 642585 928596

Long-term debt due within one year 18016 12118 14703

Future income taxes 427 434

709585 779927 961723

Long-Term Debt Note 964176 587569 595385

Other Long-Term Liabilities 62490 58102 64183

Future Income Taxes 160520 139457 166476

1896771 1565055 1787767

Shareholders Equity

Retained earnings 439958 279126 325911

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 1126 2518 9766

438832 281644 316145

Share capital Note 1883343 1883336 1883336

Contributed surplus 2918 558 1244

2325093 2165538 2200725

4221864 3730593 3988492

Commitments contingencies and guarantees Note 12
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
in thousands

TERRA

Sales and other operating revenues 2222428 2218229 5212217 5060748

Cost of sales excluding amortization see Note 1871118 1803824 4525327 4257349

Gross profit and net revenues from services 351310 414405 686890 803399

Operating general and administrative expenses 146843 141852 403428 371053

204467 272553 283462 432346

Amortization 26800 25585 775g0 76606

177667 246g68 205872 355740

Gain loss on disposal of assets 870 441 9122 1469

Integration expenses 1352 2225 5048 12264

Acquisition derivative Note 16 7404 7404

Recovery of pension settlement 3356 3356

Financing expenses Note 10 15564 8370 37020 31514

167285 239288 162086 316787

Provision for corporate taxes

Current 11447 6889 11565 15515
Future 35150 65687 36474 59780

Net earnings 120688 166712 114047 241492

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended

July 31 2009 July 31 2008 July 31 2009 July 31 2008

uriaudited rinaudited unaudited unaudited

Basic and diluted earnings per share Note 0.51 0.71 0.48 1.13
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FI
in thousands

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
FOR ThE PERIOD ENDED

July 31 2009 July 31 2008 July 31 2009 July 31 2008

unaudited uoaudited unaudited unaudited
Net earnings 120688 166712 114047 241492

Other comprehensive income loss

Realized gain on designated hedged contracts included in net earnings set of tao of 665 2000- $1219 489 671 1555 2579
Unrealized gain loss on cash flow hedges net of tax of 2398 2008 $532 17583 1095 8284 1095
Realized gain loss on cash flow hedges set of tan of 1779 2008- nil 1540 3918
Unrealized gain loss on available for sale assets net of tan of 2008- $19 37 38 49 105
Unrealized effect of foreign currency translation nf foreign operations 2154 388 2056 596

Other cnmprehensive income loss 13437 2192 8640 4670

Comprehensive income
134125 164520 122667 236822

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUiTY

in thousands

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Total Shareholders

unaudited Share Capital Contributed Surplus Income Lees Retained Earnings Equity

Note
As at October 31 2007 1422843 323 1029 55426 1474621

Accounting policy change

Unrealized gain on designated hedged contracts net of tan of 2798 5946 5946
Unrealized gain on available for sale assets net of tax of 41 213 213
Livestock receivables net of tan of 36 76 76
Debt acquisition costs using effective interest method net of t2n of 60 126 126

Share capital issued
460493 465493

Stock-based compensation 235 235
Other comprehensive loss

Realized gain on designated hedged contracts net of tan of 1215 2579 2579
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges net often of 532 1096 1095
Unrealized loss an available for sale assets net of tax of 19 100 105
Unrealized effect of foreign carrency translation of foreign operations 896 896

Future income taxes adjustment 51 51
Future income taxes share isouance costs 6067 6067
Share issuance costs 18960 18960
Net earnings for the period 241492 245492

As at July 31 2008 1883335 558 2518 279126 2165538

Stock-based compensation 686 686
Other comprehensive income loss

Realized gain so designated hedged contracts net often of 460 478 478
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges net of tao of 4578 11302 11302
Realized loss on cash flow hedges net of tan of 202 391 391

Unrealized loss on available for sale assets net of tao of 71 71
Unrealized effect of foreign currency translation of foreign operations 824 824

Future income taxes share issuance costs

Share issuance costs

Net earnings for the period 48790 46790
As at October 31 2008 1883336 1244 9766 325911 2200725

Share capital issued

Stock-based compensation 1874 1674
Other comprehensive income loss

Realized gain on designated hedged contsacts net of tan of 666 1555 1955
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges net often of 2398 8284 8284
Realized loss on cash flow hedges net of tax of 1779 3918 3918
Unrealized gain on available for sale assets net of tao of 49 49

Unrealized effect uf foreign currency translation of foreign operations 2056 2056
Net earnings for the period 114047 114047

As at July 31 2009 1883343 2918 1126 439958 2325093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
in thousands

ITERRA

Cash From Used in Operating Activities

Net earnings 120688 166712 114047 241492

Adjustments for items not involving cash

Amortization 26800 25585 77590 76606
Future income tax provision 35150 65687 36474 59780

Equity loss gain of significantly influenced companies 4657 77 6407

Recovery of pension settlement 3356 3356
Employee future benefits Note 634 138 3049 504

Non-cash financing expenses Note 10 1310 0219 3788 2952
Loss gain on disposal of assets 870 441 9122 0469
Non-cash acquisition derivative Note 16 7404 7404
Other items 764 335 1999 219

Adjustments for items not involving cash 58119 94706 124540 141643

178807 261418 238588 383135

Changes in non-cash working capital items

Accounts receivable 72733 73756 5969 270580
Inventories 492086 351825 159717 16987
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 334254 401264 264712 90383
Prepaid expenses and deposits 15296 127358 25229 23505

Changes in non-cash working capital 000395 4163 85735 355445

Cash from opecating activities 279202 265581 052853 27690

Cash From Used in Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term debt 300000 299953 400025 299953

Repayment of long-term debt 4468 516 13602 1294
Repayment of short-term borrowings 73809 449097 351 231751
Repayment of other long-term liabilities net 406 23 758 2364
Increase in share capital Note 460460 460479

Share issuance costs 18960 18960
Debt financing cost 6105 5882 6105 7553

Cash from financing activities 215208 285935 379316 498510

Cash Used in Investing Activities

Property plant and equipment expenditures 17831 15496 47173 35174
Proceeds on sale of property plant and equipment 1183 1682 1720 3919

Business acquisitions Note 76213 767 83038 31875
Decrease in cash in trust 14641 16710

Decrease increase in investments 3236 232 3354
Increase in other long-term assets 475 1216
tncrease in intangible assets 0562 6773

Cash used in investing activities 94417 3651 035495 50990

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 400003 547865 396674 475210

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Period 665368 8530 669010 64150

Impact on cash of unrealized effect of foreign currency translation

of foreign operations 461 54 774 79

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Period 1064910 539281 1064.910 539281

Cash and cash equivalents consist of

Cash 77502 49153 77502 49153

Short-term investments 994255 491339 994255 491339
Bank indebtedness 6847 1210 6847 1211

1064910 539281 1064910 539281

Supplemental disclosure of cash paid during the period from operations

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended

July 31 2009 July 31 2008 July 31 2009 July 31 2008

usaudited unaudited unaudited unauditecl

05623 10477 41945 42447

5844 2605 13634 9764
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NATURE OF BUSINESS

Viterra Inc the Company is publicly traded vertically integrated Canadian agri

business Business operations include five reporting segments Grain Handling and Marketing

Agri-products Food Processing Feed Products and Financial Products

The Grain Handling and Marketing segment includes 85 licensed primary grain elevator

locations including two producer owned joint venture grain facilities and 10 processing plants

strategically located in the prime agricultural growing regions of Western Canada and two

processing plants in the United States of America U.S. This segment also includes five

wholly owned port terminal facilities located in Vancouver British Columbia and Thunder

Bay Ontario and an ownership interest in an export facility in Prince Rupert British

Columbia Activity in this segment consists of the collection of grain through the Companys

primary elevator system shipping to inland or port terminals cleaning of grain to meet

regulatory specifications and sales to domestic or export markets Earnings in the Grain

Handling and Marketing segment are volume driven and are derived primarily from tariffs

charged to producers for elevation and cleaning of Canadian Wheat Board CWB grains

and from the sales of open market grains Revenue is also derived through grain handling

blending drying storage and other ancillary services as well as the sale of byproducts

The Agri-products segment includes an ownership interest in fertilizer manufacturer

fertilizer distributor and retail network of 254 locations throughout Western Canada Agri

products sales lines include fertilizer crop protection products seed and seed treatments and

equipment

The Food Processing segment includes the manufacture and marketing of value-added

products associated with oats canola and malt barley for domestic and export markets

The Feed Products segment formulates and manufactures feed products at six feed mills and

two pre-mix facilities across Western Canada and at six feed mill locations in Texas New
Mexico and Oklahoma in the U.S

The Financial Products segment acts as an agent for Canadian Schedule chartered bank and

provides unsecured trade credit to agricultural customers and secured loans to livestock

producers

Weather conditions are the primary risk in the agri-business industry Grain volumes grain

quality the volume and mix of crop inputs sold and ultimately the financial performance of

the Company are highly dependent upon weather conditions throughout the crop production

cycle

The Companys earnings follow the seasonal pattern of Prairie grain production Activity

peaks in the spring as new crops are sown and in the fall as mature crops are harvested The

volume of grain shipments are relatively stable through the quarters but can be influenced by

destination customer demand the CWB export program and producers marketing decisions

Sales of the Companys agri-products peak in May through July corresponding with the
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growing season supplemented by additional crop nutrient sales in the late fall Although

relatively steady throughout the year sales in the Feed Products segment tend to peak during

the winter months as feed consumption increases In the Food Processing business earnings

are more fluid with continuous demand for products throughout each quarter Financial

Products agency fees follow the related
pattern

of sales of the underlying activity in the Agri

products and Feed Products segments

On September 2009 the shareholders of ABB Grain Ltd ABB voted in favour of the

Companys acquisition of ABB through proposed Scheme of Arrangement see Note 16
ABB is leading Australian agri-business with diversified businesses including supply chain

operations grain marketing malt and rural services

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These interim unaudited consolidated financial statements are based on accounting principles

consistent with those used and described in the October 31 2008 annual consolidated

financial statements except as described below The Companys accounting policies are in

accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles GAAP All amounts

are reported in Canadian dollars unless specifically stated to the contrary However these

financial statements do not include all of the information and disclosures required for annual

financial statement presentation The interim consolidated financial statements should be read

in conjunction with the Companys annual consolidated financial statements for the year

ended October 31 2008

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current years

presentation

Inventories

Effective November 2008 the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered

Accountants CICA Handbook Section 3031 Inventories This adoption resulted in

additional disclosures as provided in Note

Grain inventories include both hedgable and non-hedgable commodities Hedgable and

non-hedgable grain inventories are valued on the basis of closing market quotations less

freight and handling costs Agri-products livestock feed and other inventories consist of

raw materials work in progress and fmished goods and are valued at the lower of cost and

net realizable value Cost is determined on first-in first-out basis

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Effective November 2008 the Company adopted the CICA Handbook Section 3064
Goodwill and Intangibles This adoption had no material impact to the Company

39



NOTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

July 31 2009 unaudited in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

INVENTORIES

As at July 31 July 31 October 31
2009 2008 2008

Grain 278693 467941 352489

Ag ri-products 337352 288298 423602
Feed Products 35488 36241 39095
Food Processing 26205 18855 22757
Financial Products 1429
Total 677 $811335 837943

Grain cost of sales includes the cost of inventories net realized and unrealized gains and

losses on commodity contracts and exchange-traded derivatives and freight

Amortization of $7.5 million and $23.0 million for the respective three and nine-month

periods ended July 31 2009 2008 $6.4 million and $17.6 million related to the

manufacture of inventory that has now been sold is included in amortization expense

Write-downs of Agri-products inventory of nil and $26.8 million for the respective three and

nine-month periods ended July 31 2009 2008 $2.4 million and $2.6 million have been

included in cost of sales

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

Three Months Ended

July 31 2009

Nine Months Ended

July 31 2009

During the year the Company purchased three agri-products retail locations

On June 25 2009 the Company purchased the assets of Associated Proteins LP of Ste

Agathe Manitoba for total consideration of $76.1 million The acquisition consists of

canola crush plant with capacity of 1000 metric tonnes per day that supplies North

American end-use markets The net assets including goodwill of $7.5 millionwill be included

in the Food Processing segment As the acquisition has recently been completed the

preliminary purchase price allocation between the assets and liabilities acquired including

goodwill will be finalized in subsequent period

These acquisitions have been funded through current operating cash flows Earnings derived

from the businesses purchased have been included in the Companys consolidated financial

statements commencing from the acquisition dates

Net assets acquired at fair value

Current assets 10579 14256

Property plant and equipment 58110 61005

Goodwill 7544 9612

Current liabilities 1823

Long-term liabilities 12 12
Cash consideration 2213 83038
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The acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method whereby the purchase

consideration was allocated to the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed at the effective date of the purchase

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Effective August 2009 the Company discontinued accepting loans on the members
demand loan program At July 31 2009 the loan balance was $17.4 million and bore interest

at 1.5% Any loans remaining at September 15 2009 will be paid out including accrued

interest

LONG-TERM DEBT

Series 2009-1 Notes

On July 2009 the Company completed the offering of $300 million in Senior

Unsecured Notes Series 2009-1 Notes bearing interest at 8.5% and maturing July

2014 The Company has certain optional redemption rights with respect to the Series

2009-1 Notes Prior to July 2012 the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate

principal amount of the Series 2009-1 Notes at redemption price of 108.5% of their

principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date with the net

proceeds received by the Company from one or more public equity offerings Prior to July

2012 the Company may redeem all or part of the Series 2009-1 Notes at redemption

price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus the Applicable Redemption

Premium as defmed in the Third Supplement Trust Indenture between the Company and

CIBC Mellon Trust Company dated July 2009 and accrued and unpaid interest to the

redemption date On or after July 2012 and prior to maturity the Company may
redeem all or part of the Series 2009-1 Notes at the following redemption prices

expressed as percentages of the principal amount at maturity plus accrued and unpaid

interest to the redemption date if redeemed during the 12-month period commencing

August in the applicable year 2012 at 102.25% 2013 at 100.00% The Series 2009-1

Notes rank pan passu with the Series 2007-1 and the Series 2006-1 Notes and the Credit

Facility which includes first charge on the Term Loan Priority Collateral and second

charge on all other assets of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries It is anticipated

the Company will use the net proceeds for general corporate purposes including funding

of future acquisitions

The fair value of the Series 2009-1 Notes at July 31 2009 was approximately $306.5

millionbased upon the quoted market price

Members Term Loans

As of July 2009 the Company ceased accepting new term loans or renewals Loans

will be paid out at maturity including principal and accrued interest or may be withdrawn

prior to maturity without penalty Interest will continue to be paid semi-annually until the

loan is redeemed or matures

The book and fair value of the long-term portion of members term loans at July 31 2009

was approximately $1.4 million 2008 $2.0 million
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

July31 July31

2009 2008 2009 2008

Net earnings 120688 166712 114047 241492

Denominator for basic earnings per share amounts

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 237050 233599 237049 214044

Basic earnings per share 0.51 0.71 0.48 1.13

Denominator for diluted earnings per share

amounts

Weighted average number of shares outstanding1 237085 233603 237057 214048

Diluted earnings per share 0.51 0.71 0.48 1.13

Number of shares in thousands

SHARE CAPITAL

Common Voting Shares

Authorized

Unlimited Common Voting Shares

Common Voting Shares

Number1 Amount

Balance October 31 2007 204156350 1422843

Share issuance for cash 32892863 460479

Adjustment to share capital from contributed surplus for options exercised 14

Balance July 31 2008 and October 31 2008 237049213 1883336

Share issuance for cash 525

Balance July 31 2009 237049738 1883343

Number of shares are not shown in thousands

Management Stock Option Plan

During fiscal 2008 the Management Stock Option Plan the Stock Option Plan was

reactivated after being inactive since fiscal 2004 The maximum number of Common
Shares that may be issued under Options issued pursuant to the Stock Option Plan is

approximately 10.2 million Common Shares Once the 1.7 million Common Shares that

can potentially be issued under currently granted and contingently granted Options are

deducted approximately 8.5 million Common Shares have been reserved for subsequent

Option Grants

The expense related to stock options is recognized over the vesting period based on the

fair value of options determined by the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the

following assumptions risk-free rate 2.6% dividend yield 0% volatility factor of the

expected market price of the Companys shares of 37% and weighted average expected

option life of 4.9 years The Companys stock based compensation expense for the

respective three and nine-month periods ended July 31 2009 was $0.6 million and $1.7

million 2008 $0.1 millionand $0.2 million
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EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Defined Benefit Plans and Future Benefits

The Companys net benefit costs related to defined benefit pension plans

benefits for the respective three and nine-month periods ended July 31

million and $3.0 million2008 $0.8 millionand $1.2 million

and other future

2009 were $0.6

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company including subsidiaries and affiliates contributes to several defined

contribution plans including multi-employer plan The Companys total consolidated

defined contribution plan expense for the respective three and nine-month periods

ended July 31 2009 was $3.2 million and $8.8 million 2008 $2.2 million and $6.3

million

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number Average Average Number of Average

of Grant-Date Exercise Options Exercise

ODtions1 Fair Value Price Exercisable1 Price

Outstanding October 31 2007 80327 77.50 80327 77.50

Options granted 253758 4.92 12.12

Forfeited 175 13.07

Exercised 2863 7.06

Outstanding July 31 2008 331047 28.03 77289 64.35

Options granted 380654 4.92 12.12

Forfeited 3595 62.10

Expired 1860 304.00

Outstanding October 31 2008 706246 18.55 71834 74.99

Options granted 957594 3.09 9.02

Forfeited 827 49.72

Exercised 525 5.90

Outstandin9 July 31 2009 1662488 13.0370482 75.80

Number of options are not shown in thousands

The following table summarizes the options outstanding and exercisable as at July 31
2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number of Average Average Number of Average

Range of Options Remaining Exercise Options Exercise

Exercise Price Outstanding1 Life Years Price Exercisable1 Price

$6.00 6638 4.00 5.90 6638 5.90

$6.01 $10.00 957594 7.00 9.02

$10.01 $70.00 676626 8.55 14.71 42214 53.56

$70.01 21630 0.83 140.65 21630 140.65

7.54 13.03 74 75.80

of options are not shown in thousands
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10 FINANCING EXPENSES

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

July 31 July 31

2009 2008 2009 2008

Interest on

Long-term debt 13997 6340 37504 19436

Short-term debt 1269 7375 3325 28336

Interest income 739 4614 5318 13428
CWB carrying charge recovery 273 1950 2279 5782

14254 7151 33232 28562

Interest accretion 541 451 1483 664

Amortization of deferred financing costs 769 768 2305 2288

15564 8370 37020 31514

11 SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company has not provided revenues from external customers by geographic location as it

is not practicable to do so Total sales and revenue from services include export sales of $1.0

billion and $2.5 billion for the respective three and nine-month periods ending July 31 2009

2008 -$0.6 billion and $1.8 billion

The segments accounting policies are consistent with those described in Accounting Policies

Note The Company accounts for inter-segment sales at current market prices under

normal trade terms

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

July31 July31

_____________________ 2009 2008 2009 2008

Sales and other operating revenues

Grain Handling and Marketing $1103853 983594 $3194273 $3116780

Agri-products 938719 1009789 1390841 1378206

Food Processing 56739 48915 159959 144125

Feed Products 147064 183786 519869 444196

Financial Products 4538 4067 12627 8127

Less Inter-segment sales 28485 11922 65352 30686

$2222428 $2218229 $5212217 $5060748

Inter-segment sales

Grain Handling and Marketing 27638 11763 61275 30173

Agri-products 277 159 277 513
Food Processing 570 3800

28485 11922 65352 30686
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2009 2008 2009 2008

Gross profit and net revenues from services

Grain Handling and Marketing 117793 127186 339991 364930

Agri-products 198950 255444 242084 347824
Food Processing 12769 10103 23802 27530
Feed Products 18098 17605 69641 54988
Financial Products 3700 4067 11372 8127

351310 414405 686890 803399

Operating general and administrative expenses

Grain Handling and Marketing 49040 48590 146305 135724
Agri-products 53009 53054 123983 114994
Food Processing 3276 1728 6787 5641
Feed Products 17880 18022 55613 53154
Financial Products 2150 1051 4913 3188
Corporate 21488 19407 65827 58352

146843 141852 403428 371053

EB1TDA

Grain Handling and Marketing 68753 78596 193686 229206

Agri-products 145941 202390 118101 232830
Food Processing 9493 8375 17015 21889
Feed Products 218 417 14028 1834
Financial Products 1550 3016 6459 4939

Corporate 21488 19407 65827 58352
204467 272553 283462 432346

EBITDA Earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization gain loss on disposal of assets integration expenses acquisition

derivative and recovery of pension settlement

Amortization

Grain Handling and Marketing 11354 9861 31562 30464
Agri-products 10627 11401 31542 33967
Food Processing 1660 1501 4621 4390
Feed Products 2921 2737 8997 7435
Financial Products 35 105 245 315
Corporate 203 20 623 35

26800 25585 77590 76606

EB1T2

Grain Handling and Marketing 57399 68735 162124 198742

Agri-products 135314 190989 86559 198863
Food Processing 7833 6874 12394 17499
Feed Products 2703 3154 5031 5601
Financial Products 1515 2911 6214 4624

Corporate 21691 19387 66450 58387
177667 246968 205872 355740

Earnings before interest taxes gain loss on disposal of assets integration expenses acquisition derivative and
recovery

of pension

settlement

12 COMMITMENTS CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

Letters of Credit

At July 31 2009 the Company had outstanding letters of credit and similar instruments of

$5.1 million related to operating an agri-business October 31 2008 $68.2 million July

Three Months Ended

July31

Nine Months Ended

July 31
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31 2008 $45.0 million The terms range in duration and expire at various dates from

November 2009 to March 2010 The amounts vary depending on underlying business

activity or the specific agreements in place with the third parties These instruments

effectively reduce the amount of cash that can be drawn on the revolving credit facility

Indemnification of Accounts Receivable

Viterra FinancialTM- the Company has rolling five-year agreement with Canadian

Schedule chartered bank to provide credit for qualifiing agricultural producers to

purchase crop inputs The agreement may be terminated at an earlier date by mutual

consent or by either party upon one years written notice The Company indemnifies the

bank for 50% of future losses to maximum of 5% of the aggregate qualified portfolio

balance The Companys aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time with the size of

the underlying portfolio As at July 31 2009 outstanding credit was $568.2 million

October 31 2008 $487.7 million July 31 2008 $573.3 million and the Companys

obligation for
past and future losses is current with the bank in accordance with the

Agency Agreement

Unifeed Financial the Company has rolling five-year agreement with Canadian

Schedule chartered bank to provide loans to customers to purchase feeder cattle and

feeder hogs as well as related feed inputs with terms that do not require payment until the

livestock is sold The agreement may be terminated at an earlier date by mutual consent or

by either party upon one years written notice The Company indenmifies the bank for

credit losses based on the first 20% to 33% of new credit issued on an individual account

dependent on the accounts underlying credit rating with losses in excess of these

amounts shared on an equal basis with the bank up to 5% on the aggregate qualified

portfolio balance The Companys aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time with

the credit rating of the underlying accounts and the aggregate credit outstanding As at

July 31 2009 outstanding credit was $36.6 million October 31 2008 $31.9 million

July 31 2008 $30.3 million and the Companys obligation for past and future losses is

current with the bank in accordance with the Agency Agreement

Loan Guarantees

The Company is contingently liable under two guarantees given to two third-party lenders

who have provided certain financing facilities to its wholly owned foreign subsidiaries

As at July 31 2009 the maximum amounts of the guarantees are JPY billion and $30

million or approximately $52.8 millionin the aggregate As at July 31 2009 the principal

outstanding and included in the Companys consolidated short-term borrowings was nil

October 31 2008 nil July 31 2008nil

The Company is contingently liable under several guarantees given to third-party lenders

who have provided long-term fmancing to certain independent hog producers As at July

31 2009 the current outstanding balance of these guarantees is $2.5 million October 31
2008 $2.8 million July 31 2008 $2.9 million These guarantees diminish as the

underlying loans are repaid and expire in 2014

The Company is contingently liable to finance company for portion of losses incurred

related to potential producer delinquencies associated with equipment leases and credit
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provided for the purchase of fertilizer bins Given historically low delinquent rates in

conjunction with collateral values of assets the Company has accrued no obligation

Asset Retirement Obligations

In 1987 joint venture which manufactured phosphate and nitrate fertilizers closed two

of its facilities The asset retirement obligations represent the best estimate by

management of the legal obligations it would incur during the reclamation process

Reclamation involves the demolition of the manufacturing facilities and the reclamation of

the phosphogypsum stacks Uncertainty exists regarding the estimation of future

decommissioning and reclamation costs

At July 31 2009 the Company estimated that the undiscounted cash flow required to

settle the asset retirement obligations was approximately $20.4 million October 31 2008

$23.9 million July 31 2008 $17.6 million which is expected to be settled over the

2009 through 2015 period The credit adjusted risk-free rates at which the estimated cash

flows have been discounted range from 4% to 5.4%

Director and Officer Indemnification

The Company indemnifies its directors and officers against any and all claims or losses

reasonably incurred in the performance of their service to the Company to the extent

permitted by law The Company has acquired and maintains liability insurance for its

directors and officers as well as those of certain affiliated companies

Other Indemnification Provisions

From time to time the Company enters into agreements in the normal course of operations

and in connection with business or asset acquisitions or dispositions By their nature

these agreements may provide for indemnification of counterparties The varying nature

of these indenmification agreements prevents the Company from making reasonable

estimate of the maximum potential amount it could incur Historically the Company has

not made any significant payments in connection with these indemnification provisions

Other Contingencies

As at July 31 2009 there are claims against the Company in varying amounts for which

provision in the fmancial statements is not considered necessary The occurrence of the

confirming future event is not determinable or it is not possible to determine the amounts

that may ultimately be assessed against the Company with respect to these claims

Management believes that any such amounts would not have material impact on the

business or financial position of the Company

13 FINANcIAL AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING

Fair Value

The following table presents the carrying amount and the fair value of the Companys
financial instruments and non-financial derivatives Amortized cost is calculated using the

effective interest rate method Fair value is based on quoted market prices These

amounts represent point-in-time estimates and may not reflect fair value in the future

These calculations are subjective in nature involve uncertainties and are matter of

significant judgment
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July 31 July 31 October 31
2009 2008 2008

Financial

Instruments Carrying

Carrying Value Fair Value Category Carrying Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

Cash 77502 77502 HFT 49153 49153 183536 183536

Short-term investments 994255 994255 HFT-D 491339 491339 486129 486129
Accounts receivable

Loans and receivables 709571 709571 L8R 656341 656341 703773 703773

Commodity contracts

and exchange-traded

derivatives 92626 92626 HFT 98889 98889 70057 70057

802197 802197 755230 755230 773830 773830

Investments

Available for sale at

fair value 119 119 AFS 140 140 62 62

Available for sale at

cost 7545 7545 AFS 8078 8078 7359 7359
Non-financial

instrument 77 N/A 8064 224

7741 16282 7645

Other long-term assets

Long-term receivable 3945 3945 LR 4794 4794 2075 2075
Non-financial

instrument 62018 N/A 45917 67163

65963 50711 69238

Bank indebtedness 6847 6847 Oft 1211 1211 655 655

Short-term borrowings 17418 17418 OFL 123579 123579 17769 17769

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities

Other liabilities 623290 623290 OFL 632803 632803 846765 846765

Commodity contracts

and exchange-traded

derivatives 43587 43587 HFT 9782 9782 81831 81831

666877 666877 642585 642585 928596 928596

Long-term debt

including current portion 982192 999096 OFL 599687 616659 610088 595257
Other long-term liabilities

Commodity contracts

and exchange-traded

derivatives 12702 12702 HIT 10121 10121
Classified as other

liabilities 12179 12179 OFL 19504 19504 9638 9638
Non-financial

instrument 37609 N/A 38598 44424

62490 58102 64183

Financial instruments category/guide HIT Held for trading

HFT-D Held for trading designated

LR Loans and receivables

AFS Available for sale

OFL Other financial liabilities

N/A Not applicable

Changes in fair value of commodity contracts and exchange-traded derivatives are included in cost of

sales
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Risks and Risk Management

The Company faces certain financial risks such as commodity price foreign exchange

interest rate credit and liquidity risk which can impact its financial performance The

Company is exposed to changes in commodity prices foreign exchange rates and interest

rates The Company utilizes number of financial instruments to manage these exposures

Financial instruments are not used for trading or speculative purposes The Company

mitigates risk associated with these financial instruments through Board-approved

policies limits on use and amount of exposure internal monitoring and compliance

reporting to senior management and the Board For additional information on other

general and environmental risks and how they arise and are managed readers should

review the 2008 Annual Information Form and Section 18 of Managements Discussion

and Analysis included in the 2008 Annual Financial Review

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to commodity price movements within the market as part of

its normal operations The Company uses exchange-traded futures and options

contracts to minimize the effects of changes in the prices of hedgable agricultural

commodities on its agri-business inventories and agricultural commodities forward

cash purchase and sales contracts Exchange-traded futures and options contracts are

valued at the quoted market prices Forward purchase contracts and forward sales

contracts are valued at the quoted market prices which are based on exchange quoted

prices adjusted for freight and handling costs This is consistent with the Companys

practice in the prior year The Company manages the risk associated with inventory

and open contracts on combined basis The Companys Risk Management Policy

provides limits within which management may maintain inventory and certain long or

short commodity positions Based on the Companys July 31 2009 closing positions

$10 per tonne change in commodity market prices and $2 per toime change in basis

levels would result in $1.4 million change to the Companys after tax net earnings on

unhedged positions In relation to the natural gas contracts outstanding at July 31

2009 $1 per gigajoule change in market prices would result in $1.3 millionchange

to the Companys after tax net earnings

ii Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on financial commodity contracts

which are denominated in foreign currencies and on its investment in foreign

subsidiaries The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign

currency forward contracts futures contracts and options to limit exposures to

changes in foreign currency exchange rates with respect to its recorded foreign

currency denominated assets and liabilities as well as anticipated transactions

During fiscal 2009 the Food Processing segment of the Company implemented hedge

accounting to match the cash flow of its products sold in U.S funds with its U.S

dollar currency hedging instruments Under hedge accounting the effective portion of

the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recognized in other

comprehensive income while the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in

sales and other operating revenues Upon maturity of the derivative instrument the

effective gains and losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
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recorded in net earnings as component of sales and other operating revenues

Maturity dates for the foreign exchange forward contracts on anticipated transactions

extend to November 2012 As at July 31 2009 the portion of the forward contracts

considered to be ineffective is insignificant The estimated amount reported in other

comprehensive income that is expected to be reclassified to net earnings as

component of sales and other operating revenues during the next 12 months is an after

tax expense of $4.1 million Previously the Food Processing segment had

discontinued hedge accounting and had thereby increased the potential for volatility in

income on these hedged contracts

In all other segments the foreign currency forward contracts futures contracts and

options used by the Company are marked-to-market and unrealized gains and losses

are recognized in income in the period in which they occur Due to the Companys

risk management strategy the Companys sensitivity in net earnings and other

comprehensive income to changes in foreign currency exchange rates except as noted

below is insignificant

During the year the Company entered into series of derivative contracts in

connection with its offer to acquire ABB The Company has entered into option

arrangements in order to limit exposure to change in the Australian dollar AUD
on AUD $1.1 billion These derivatives were used to mitigate the risk of economic

loss arising from changes in the value of the Australian dollar compared to the

Canadian dollar between the announcement of the acquisition and the expected closing

date The effect of 100 basis point increase in the value of the AIJD would result in

$5.4 million increase to the Companys after tax net earnings decrease of an

equal amount would result in $3.9 million decrease to the Companys after tax net

earnings

The Company also has immaterial exposures to other currencies such as British

pounds and euros

iii Interest Rate Risk

The Company manages interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk on borrowings by

using combination of cash instruments forwards and mixture of fixed and floating

rates The Company has entered into interest rate swaps to manage variable interest

rates associated with portion of the Companys debt portfolio The Company uses

hedge accounting for interest rate swaps used to hedge long-term debt Hedge

accounting treatment results in interest expense on the related debt being reflected at

hedged rates rather than at variable interest rates The effective portion of changes in

the fair value of the swap is recognized in other comprehensive income while any
ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the swap is recognized immediately

in financing expenses Gains and losses are recognized in financing expenses in the

same period as the hedged item is settled Based on the Companys current credit

ratings and interest rate swaps the hedged fixed rate of interest on the Credit Facility

is approximately 5.3% on Canadian dollar borrowings and approximately 6.1% on

U.S dollar borrowings The effect of 25 basis point change on the $218.3 million

Canadian dollar interest rate swap would result in $1.3 million change to the
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July 31 2009 unaudited in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

Companys after tax other comprehensive income and no change to after tax net

earnings The effect of 25 basis point change on the $72.8 million U.S dollar

interest rate swap would result in $0.5 million change to the Companys after tax

other comprehensive income and no change to after tax net earnings The effect of

25 basis point change on the $97.0 million Canadian dollar interest swap would result

in $0.6 million change to the Companys after tax other comprehensive income and

no change to after tax net earnings The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk

on short-term variable rate borrowings The Companys short-term borrowings

fluctuate with seasonal working capital requirements 1% increase in short-term

variable rates based on July 31 2009 borrowings would decrease after tax net earnings

by $0.1 million per annum

The fair value of the secured notes fluctuates as market interest rates change However
the secured notes have been designated as other fmancial liabilities and therefore

changes in their fair value have no impact on net earnings

iv Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in respect of trade receivables which the

Company manages through ongoing credit reviews of all significant contracts and

analysis of payment and loss history The absence of significant financial

concentration of such receivables except as noted below for receivables from the

CWB limits its exposure to credit risk Credit risk exposure for the Agri-products and

Feed Products segments are also limited through an arrangement with Canadian

Schedule chartered bank which provides for limited recourse to the Company for

credit losses on accounts receivable under Viterra Financial and Unifeed Financial

The Company is also exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance of its

counterparties on its derivative contracts However in the case of over-the-counter

derivative contracts the Company only contracts with pre-authorized counterparties

where agreements are in place and the Company monitors the credit ratings of its

counterparties on an ongoing basis Exchange traded futures contracts used to hedge

future revenues in the Companys grain business are not subject to any significant

credit risk as the changes in contract positions are settled daily through recognized

exchange

All bad debt write-offs are charged to operating general and administrative expenses

The changes in the allowance for losses against accounts receivable are as follows

Balance October 31 2007 10303
Provision for losses 5564

Write-offs net of recoveries 4836
Balance July 31 2008 11031
Provision for losses 4314

Write-offs net of recoveries 3403
Balance October 31 2008 11942

Provision for losses 168

Write-offs net of recoveries 2876
Balance July 31 2009
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The distribution of trade accounts receivable by credit quality as at July 31 2009 is

shown in the following table

Not past due 509675
Past due

Past due less than 60 days 23763
Past due 60 to 90 days 14178
Past due 90 days or more 9831

Impaired 9234
Balance July 31 2009

Included in trade accounts receivable not past due is $288.3 milliondue from the CWB
which

represents significant concentration of credit risk

The Companys maximum credit exposure at the balance sheet date consists primarily

of the carrying amounts of non-derivative financial assets such as cash cash

equivalents accounts receivable and long-term receivables as well as the fair value of

commodity contracts exchange-traded derivatives and other non-trade assets included

in accounts receivable

Short-term investments are held with two Schedule one Schedule II and one

Schedule III Canadian commercial banks and have maturities of less than three

months

Liquidity Risk

The Company actively maintains credit facilities to ensure it has sufficient available

funds to meet current and foreseeable fmancial requirements Please refer to Section

6.6 of the Management Discussion and Analysis for contractual maturities of financial

liabilities at July 31 2009

Collateral

The Company has charged substantially all assets of the Company and certain of its

subsidiaries as security for borrowings

14 MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Companys objective when managing capital is to strive for long-term manageable level

of debt to total capital Due to the seasonal nature of the Companys short-term borrowing

requirements the Companys objective is to manage the level of debt to total capital between

30%to4O%

Debt to total capital is defmed as total interest bearing debt divided by total interest bearing

debt plus the book value of total shareholders equity Interest bearing debt is the aggregate of

bank indebtedness short-term borrowings long-term debt due within one year and long-term

debt
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As at

Bank indebtedness 6847 1211 655

i7L4
Total short-term debt 24265 124790 18424

Long-term debt due within one year 18016 12118 14703

oiclbt
..--

Total long-term debt 982192 599687 610088

Total interest bearing debt 1006457 724477 628512

Shareholders equity 2325093 2165538 2200725

caital$3331550$2890015$2829237
Debt to total capital

As at the balance sheet date 3070 2575 2278

Four quarter average 2674 3367 3070

The Company has covenant to maintain debt to capitalization ratio as prescribed by the

financial institutions for portion of the long-term financing At July 31 2009 the Company
is in compliance with external covenants related to the management of capital

15 FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

International Financial Reporting Standards

In January 2006 the CICA Accounting Standards Board adopted strategic plan for the

direction of accounting standards in Canada As
part of that plan accounting standards for

public companies would be required to converge with International Fmancial Reporting

Standards IFRS for fiscal years beginning on or after January 2011 with comparative

figures presented on the same basis In February 2008 the Accounting Standards Board

confirmed the effective due date of the initial adoption of IFRS The impact of the transition

to IFRS on the Companys consolidated financial statements continues to be assessed

Set out below is the significant difference between GAAP and IFRS that the Company has

currently identified The Company continues to monitor standards development as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and as standards change or are issued there may
be additional impacts on the Companys assessment In addition the Company may identify

additional differences or experience changes in its business that may have an impact on the

assessment

material item was identified for employee benefits based on differences between GAAP and

IFRS relating to the accounting for defmed benefit pension plans IFRS has several technical

differences from current GAAP accounting for defined benefit pension plans As well there

are several accounting policy choices that are available under IFRS for pension accounting

including choice that is similar to what the Company currently employs under GAAP
Compared to GAAP IFRS introduces differences in the calculation of the expected future

benefit the liability for minimum funding requirements the valuation allowance and the

interaction thereof

July 31
2009

July 31
2008

October 31
2008
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All other identified differences are considered unlikely to have significant impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements These differences include

Presentation and Disclosure

Business Combinations

Impairment

Provisions

Share-based Payments

Leases

Foreign Currency Translation

Income Taxes

16 AcQuIsITIoN OF ABB GRAIN LTD

On May 19 2009 the Company and ABB announced that they had signed an Implementation

Agreement under which the Company proposed to acquire all the issued and outstanding

common shares in ABB

On September 2009 an ABB Shareholder Meeting was held at which ABB shareholders

voted in favour of the proposed transaction which required majority of the number of ABB
shareholders who voted and at least 75% of the total number of votes cast to be in favour As

result of ABB shareholders voting in favour of the proposed transaction Constitutional

Amendment Meeting was also held on September 2009 at which ABB shareholders voted

to approve constitutional amendment to remove 15% ownership cap which limited the

number of shares an individual shareholder of ABB can own This amendment required at

least 75% of all votes cast to be in favour and was required to facilitate the proposed

transaction with the Company On September 10 2009 the Federal Court of Australia also

approved the proposed transaction

The transaction is valued based on the Companys closing share price on May 15 2009 the
last trading day prior to the announcement of $8.84 per share and an Australian dollar to

Canadian dollar exchange rate of $0.8901 All amounts reported in this Note are in the

Canadian dollar equivalent of Australian funds converted at this exchange rate The actual

exchange rate and Company share price at time of closing may differ The total value of the

transaction is approximately $1.4 billion

Under the offer for each ABB share ABB shareholders will receive combination of cash

and shares valued at per share total amounts ranging from $8.1 1-$8.38 dependent upon the

election by ABB shareholders between cash or shares and subject to maximum cash and share

limits The maximum cash limit is approximately $1 billion and the maximum share limit is

approximately 78 million common shares of the Company

The share component will be in the form of CHESS Depository Interests CDI to be listed

on the Australian Securities Exchange The CDIs will represent an equal interest in Company
shares and will be exchangeable into Toronto Stock Exchange TSX listed Company shares

on one-for-one basis Shareholders can also elect to have their share component issued as

Company shares listed on the TSX
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Funding for the cash component of the acquisition of the common shares of ABB will come

from short-term investments or cash held by the Company and the net proceeds of private

placement subscription receipt offering which closed on May 13 2009

Under the private placement offering the Company issued 56250000 subscription receipts at

price of $8.00 per subscription receipt for gross proceeds of $450 million Each subscription

receipt entitles the holder to receive for no additional consideration one common share of the

Company upon the initial take-up by the Company of all of the outstanding common shares of

ABB The 56250000 subscription receipts will be exchanged into an equivalent number of

common shares of the Company upon the initial take-up by the Company of the ABB common
shares on the Implementation Date of September 23 2009

At July 31 2009 the
gross proceeds from the subscription receipts were being held in escrow

pending the initial take-up by the Company of the common shares of ABB As the proceeds

were conditional upon the successful completion of the transaction they were not reflected as

assets or equity of the Company at July 31 2009

At July 31 2009 the Company had $7.4 million gain net of associated costs related to

program using various fmancial instruments to hedge the purchase of Australian dollars in

anticipation of the ABB acquisition This gain is included in the acquisition derivative line of

the consolidated statements of earnings

Upon successful completion of the transaction the Companys Term Credit Facility rate of

interest will increase by 2.0%
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Form F52-109F2 Certification of Interim Filings

Mayo Schmidt President and Chief Executive Officer of Viterra Inc certify the following

Review have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MDA together the interim filings of Viterra

Inc the issuer for the interim period ended July 2009

No misrepresentations Based on my knowledge having exercised reasonable diligence the interim filings do not

contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to

make statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made with respect to the period

covered by the interim filings

Fair presentation Based on my knowledge having exercised reasonable diligence the interim financial statements

together with the other financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the issuer as of the date of and for the periods presented in

the interim filings

Responsibility The issuers other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures DCP and internal control over financial reporting ICFR as those terms are defined in

National Instrument 52-109 Cart fication of Disclosure in Issuers Annual and Interim Filings for the issuer

Design Subject to the limitations if any described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3 the issuers other certifying officers and

have as at the end of the period covered by the interim filings

designed DCP or caused it to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance that

material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others particularly during the

period in which the interim filings are being prepared and

ii information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings interim filings or other reports

filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in securities legislation and

designed ICFR or caused it to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with the issuers GAAP

5.1 Controlframework The control framework the issuers other certifying officers and used to design the issuers ICFR
is COSO

5.2 N/A

5.3 N/A

Reporting changes in ICFR The issuer has disclosed in its interim MDA any change in the issuers ICFR that occurred

during the period beginning on May 2009 and ended on July 31 2009 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely

to materially affect the issuers ICFR

Date September 11 2009

Mayo Schmidt

President and Chief Executive Officer



Form F52-109F2 Certification of Interim Filings

Rex McLeiman Chief Financial Officer of Viterra Inc certify the following

Review have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MDA together the interim filings of Viterra

Inc the issuer for the interim period ended July 31 2009

No misrepresentations Based on my knowledge having exercised reasonable diligence the interim filings do not

contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to

make statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made with respect to the period

covered by the interim filings

Fair presentation Based on my knowledge having exercised reasonable diligence the interim financial statements

together with the other financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the issuer as of the date of and for the periods presented in

the interim filings

Responsibility The issuers other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures DCP and intemal control over financial reporting ICFR as those terms are defined in

National Instrument 52-109 Certfication of Disclosure in Issuers Annual and Interim Filings for the issuer

Design Subject to the limitations if any described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3 the issuers other certifying officers and

have as at the end of the period covered by the interim filings

designed DCP or caused it to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance that

material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others particularly during the

period in which the interim filings are being prepared and

ii information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings interim filings or other reports

filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in securities legislation and

designed ICFR or caused it to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with the issuers GAAP

5.1 Controiframework The control framework the issuers other certifying officers and used to design the issuers ICFR
is COSO

5.2 N/A

5.3 N/A

Reporting changes in ICFR The issuer has disclosed in its interim MDA any change in the issuers ICFR that occurred

during the period beginning on May 2009 and ended on July 31 2009 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely

to materially affect the issuers ICFR

Date September 112009

Rex McLennan

Chief Financial Officer



TERRA
For Immediate Release

Date September 2009

Listed TSX VT

Listed ABB ASX

Court Approves ABB Scheme of Arrangement

Viterra Inc is pleased to announce it has been advised by ABB Grain Ltd ABB ASX ABB
that the Federal Court of Australia today made orders approving the ABB Scheme of

Arrangement as described in ABBs Scheme booklet dated 30 July 2009

The court ruling follows the approvals received by shareholders at meetings held yesterday

copy of the orders will be lodged with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission The

effective date of the Scheme is expected to be 11 September 2009 in Australia

Subject to ABBs Scheme becoming effective it is expected that

The Australia Securities Exchange ASX will suspend trading in ABB Grain Shares at the

close of trading on 11 September 2009

The trading in Viterra CDIs on deferred settlement basis on the ASX will commence on 14

September 2009

The record date for the ABB Grain Special Dividend will be 17 September 2009
The deadline for receipt of Scheme Consideration Election Forms is 18 September 2009

500 pm
The Scheme Record Date for determining entitlements to Scheme Consideration is 18

September 2009 630 pm
The Implementation date is 23 September 2009

Trading in Viterra Shares issued under the Scheme on the TSX will commence on 24

September 2009

The expected payment date for the ABB Grain Special Dividend is 28 September 2009
The holding statements for Viterra CDIs is 28 September 2009
The first day for dispatch of Cash Consideration is 29 September 2009
The last day of trading in Viterra CDIs on deferred settlement basis on the ASX is 28

September 2009

The commencement of trading in Viterra CDIs on the ASX on normal settlement basis is 29

September 2009

The last day for despatch of Cash Consideration certificates for Viterra Shares and holding

statements for Viterra CDls is October 2009

The last day for sales to be completed under the Cash Out Facility is 15 October 2009

Terms capitalized but not otherwise defined shall have the meaning given to them in the Scheme
Booklet The above times and dates are indicative only Any changes to the timetable will be

posted to ABBs and Viterras respective websites at www.abb.com.au and www.viterra.ca

Forward-Looking Information

This release contains forward looking statements that involve certain risks and uncertainties

which could cause actual results and anticipated transaction benefits to differ materially from

future results and anticipated benefits expressed or implied by such statements Important factors

that could affect these statements include without limitation weather conditions producers
decisions regarding total planted acreage crop selection and utilization levels of farm inputs



such as fertilizers and pesticides grain export levels changes in government policy and

transportation deregulation world agricultural commodity prices and markets changes in

competitive forces including pricing pressures and global political and economic conditions

including grain subsidy actions of the United States and European Union

About Viterra

Viterra Inc is Canadas leading agribusiness with extensive operations and distribution

capabilities across Western Canada and with operations in the United States Japan Singapore
and Geneva The Company is diversified into sales and services of crop inputs and equipment

grain handling and marketing livestock feed agri-food processing and financial products These

operations are complemented by value-added businesses and strategic alliances which allow

Viterra to leverage its pivotal position between Prairie farmers and destination customers The

Companys common shares are listed on the TSX under the symbol VT

Interested parties are invited to visit

Contact

Tom Steve

Director of Corporate Affairs

Viterra Inc

306 569-4262

www.viterra.ca


